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Maturity
Date

December 20, 2018
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes Linked to an
International Equity Index Basket
· Maturity of approximately five years
· If the Basket is flat or increases up to the
Step Up Value, a return of 49.20%
· If the Basket increases above the Step Up
Value, a return equal to the percentage
increase in the Basket
· 1-to-1 downside exposure to decreases in the
Basket beyond a 20.00% decline, with up to
80.00% of your principal at risk
·The Basket is comprised of the MSCI
Emerging Markets Index, the EURO STOXX
50® Index, the FTSE® 100 Index, the Nikkei
Stock Average Index, the Swiss Market Index,
the S&P/ASX 200 Index, and the Hang Seng®
Index. The MSCI Emerging Markets Index
was given an initial weight of 50.00%, the
EURO STOXX 50® Index was given an initial
weight of 20.00%, each of the FTSE® 100
Index and the Nikkei Stock Average Index
were given an initial weight of 10.00%, each
of the Swiss Market Index and the S&P/ASX
200 Index were given an initial weight of
3.75% and the Hang Seng® Index was given
an initial weight of 2.50%
· All payments occur at maturity and are
subject to the credit risk of The Bank of Nova
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Scotia
· No periodic interest payments
· In addition to the underwriting discount set
forth below, the notes include a
hedging-related charge of $0.075 per unit. See
“Structuring the Notes”.
· Limited secondary market liquidity, with no
exchange listing
· The notes are unsecured debt securities and
are not savings accounts or insured deposits of
a bank. The notes are not insured or
guaranteed by the Canada Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the “CDIC”), the U.S. Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”), or
any other governmental agency of Canada, the
United States or any other jurisdiction

The notes are being issued by The Bank of Nova Scotia (“BNS”). There are important differences between the notes and
a conventional debt security, including different investment risks and certain additional costs. See “Risk Factors”
beginning on page TS-7 of this term sheet and beginning on page PS-7 of product prospectus supplement EQUITY
SUN-1.
The initial estimated value of the notes as of the pricing date is $9.34 per unit, which is less than the public offering
price listed below. See “Summary” on the following page, “Risk Factors” and “Additional Risk Factors” beginning on page
TS-7 of this term sheet and “Structuring the Notes” on page TS-30 of this term sheet for additional information. The
actual value of your notes at any time will reflect many factors and cannot be predicted with accuracy.
_________________________
None of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), any state securities commission, or any other
regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this Note Prospectus (as defined
below) is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
_________________________

Per Unit Total
Public offering price $  10.00 $2,296,450.00

Underwriting discount $    0.25 $56,736.25

Proceeds, before expenses, to BNS $    9.75 $2,212,713.75

The notes:

Are Not FDIC Insured Are Not Bank Guaranteed May Lose
Value

Merrill Lynch & Co.
December 20, 2018
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Summary
The Market-Linked Step Up Notes Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023 (the
“notes”) are our senior unsecured debt securities. The notes are not guaranteed or insured by the CDIC or the FDIC, and
are not, either directly or indirectly, an obligation of any third party. The notes will rank equally with all of our other
unsecured senior debt. Any payments due on the notes, including any repayment of principal, will be subject to the
credit risk of BNS.
The notes provide you with a Step Up Payment if the Ending Value of the Market Measure, which is the international
equity index basket described below (the “Basket”), is equal to or greater than the Starting Value, but is not greater than
the Step Up Value. If the Ending Value is greater than the Step Up Value, you will participate on a 1-for-1 basis in the
increase in the level of the Basket above the Starting Value. If the Ending Value is less than the Starting Value but
greater than or equal to the Threshold Value, you will receive the principal amount of your notes. If the Ending Value
is less than the Threshold Value, you will lose a portion, which could be significant, of the principal amount of your
notes. Any payments on the notes will be calculated based on the $10 principal amount per unit and will depend on
the performance of the Basket, subject to our credit risk. See “Terms of the Notes” below.
The Basket is comprised of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index, the EURO STOXX 50® Index, the FTSE® 100 Index,
the Nikkei Stock Average Index, the Swiss Market Index, the S&P/ASX 200 Index and the Hang Seng® Index (each a
“Basket Component”). On the pricing date, the MSCI Emerging Markets Index was given an initial weight of 50%, the
EURO STOXX 50® Index was given an initial weight of 20.00%, each of the FTSE® 100 Index and the Nikkei Stock
Average Index were given an initial weight of 10.00%, each of the Swiss Market Index and the S&P/ASX 200 Index
were given an initial weight of 3.75% and the Hang Seng® Index was given an initial weight of 2.50%.
The economic terms of the notes (including the Step Up Payment) are based on our internal funding rate, which is the
rate we would pay to borrow funds through the issuance of market-linked notes, and the economic terms of certain
related hedging arrangements.  Our internal funding rate is typically lower than the rate we would pay when we issue
conventional fixed rate debt securities. This difference in funding rate, as well as the underwriting discount and the
hedging related charge described below, reduced the economic terms of the notes to you and the initial estimated
value of the notes on the pricing date. Due to these factors, the public offering price you pay to purchase the notes is
greater than the initial estimated value of the notes.
On the cover page of this term sheet, we have provided the initial estimated value for the notes. This estimated value
was determined by reference to our internal pricing models, which take into consideration certain factors, such as our
internal funding rate on the pricing date and our assumptions about market parameters. For more information about
the initial estimated value and the structuring of the notes, see “Structuring the Notes” on page TS-30.

Terms of the Notes Redemption Amount Determination

Issuer: The Bank of Nova Scotia (“BNS”) On the maturity date, you will receive a cash payment
per unit determined as follows:

Principal
Amount: $10.00 per unit

Term: Approximately five years
Market
Measure:

An international equity index basket comprised
of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index
(Bloomberg symbol: “MXEF”), the EURO
STOXX 50® Index (Bloomberg symbol: “SX5E”),
the FTSE® 100 Index (Bloomberg symbol:
“UKX”), the Nikkei Stock Average Index
(Bloomberg symbol: “NKY”), the Swiss Market
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Index (Bloomberg symbol: “SMI”), the S&P/ASX
200 Index (Bloomberg symbol: “AS51”) and the
Hang Seng® Index (Bloomberg symbol: “HSI”).
Each Basket Component is a price return index.

Starting
Value: 100.00

Ending
Value:

The closing level of the Market Measure on the
calculation day. The scheduled calculation day is
subject to postponement in the event of Market
Disruption Events, as described beginning on
page PS-21 of product prospectus supplement
EQUITY SUN-1.

Step Up
Value: 149.20 (149.20% of the Starting Value).

Step Up
Payment:

$4.92 per unit, which represents a return of
49.20% over the principal amount. The actual
Step Up Payment will be determined on the
pricing date.

Threshold
Value: 80.00 (80.00% of the Starting Value).

Calculation
Day: December 14, 2023

Fees and
Charges:

The underwriting discount of $0.25 per unit
listed on the cover page and the hedging related
charge of $0.075 per unit described in
“Structuring the Notes” on page TS-30

 Calculation
Agent:

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated (“MLPF&S”).

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-2
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The terms and risks of the notes are contained in this term sheet and in the following:

●Product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1 dated July 24, 2018:http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/9631/000091412118001349/bn48109837-424b5.htm 

●Prospectus supplement dated February 13, 2017:https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/9631/000110465917008642/a17-4372_1424b3.htm

●Prospectus dated February 1, 2017:https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/9631/000119312517027656/d338678d424b3.htm
These documents (together, the “Note Prospectus”) have been filed as part of a registration statement with the SEC,
which may, without cost, be accessed on the SEC website as indicated above or obtained from MLPF&S by calling
1-800-294-1322. Before you invest, you should read the Note Prospectus, including this term sheet, for information
about us and this offering.  Any prior or contemporaneous oral statements and any other written materials you may
have received are superseded by the Note Prospectus. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this term sheet have
the meanings set forth in product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1. Unless otherwise indicated or unless the
context requires otherwise, all references in this document to “we,” “us,” “our,” or similar references are to BNS.

Investor Considerations

You may wish to consider an investment in the notes if: The notes may not be an appropriate
investment for you if:

●  You anticipate that the Basket will not decrease from the Starting Value to the
Ending Value.
● You are willing to risk a substantial loss of principal if the Basket decreases
from the Starting Value to an Ending Value that is less than the Threshold
Value.
● You are willing to forgo the interest payments that are paid on conventional
interest bearing debt securities.
●  You are willing to forgo dividends or other benefits of owning the stocks
included in the Basket Components.
●  You are willing to accept a limited or no market for sales prior to maturity, and
understand that the market prices for the notes, if any, will be affected by
various factors, including our actual and perceived creditworthiness, our
internal funding rate and fees and charges on the notes.
●  You are willing to assume our credit risk, as issuer of the notes, for all
payments under the notes, including the Redemption Amount.

●  You believe that Basket will
decrease from the Starting Value to
the Ending Value.
●  You seek 100% principal
repayment or preservation of capital.
●  You seek interest payments or other
current income on your investment.
●  You want to receive dividends or
other distributions paid on the stocks
included in the Basket Components.
●  You seek an investment for which
there will be a liquid secondary
market.
●  You are unwilling or are unable to
take market risk on the notes or to
take our credit risk as issuer of the
notes.

We urge you to consult your investment, legal, tax, accounting, and other advisors before you invest in the notes.
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-3
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Hypothetical Payout Profile and Examples of Payments at Maturity
Market-Linked Step Up Notes

This graph reflects the returns on the notes, based on the
Threshold Value of 80.00% of the Starting Value, the Step Up
Payment of $4.92 per unit and the Step Up Value of 149.20% of
the Starting Value. The green line reflects the returns on the
notes, while the dotted gray line reflects the returns of a direct
investment in the stocks included in the Basket Components,
excluding dividends.

This graph has been prepared for purposes of illustration only.

The following table and examples are for purposes of illustration only.  They are based on hypothetical values and
show hypothetical returns on the notes. They illustrate the calculation of the Redemption Amount and total rate of
return based on the Starting Value of 100, the Threshold Value of 80, the Step Up Value of 149.20, the Step Up
Payment of $4.92 per unit and a range of hypothetical Ending Values. The actual amount you receive and the resulting
total rate of return will depend on the actual Ending Value and whether you hold the notes to maturity. The following
examples do not take into account any tax consequences from investing in the notes.
For recent hypothetical levels of the Basket, see “The Basket” section below. For recent actual levels of the Basket
Components, see the “Basket Component” section below. Each Basket Component is a price return index and as such
the Ending Value will not include any income generated by dividends paid on the stocks included in any of the Basket
Components, which you would otherwise be entitled to receive if you invested in those stocks directly. In addition, all
payments on the notes are subject to issuer credit risk.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-4
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Ending
Value

Percentage Change from the Starting Value to the
Ending Value

Redemption Amount per
Unit

Total Rate of Return on the
Notes

0.00 -100.00% $2.00 -80.00%
50.00 -50.00% $7.00 -30.00%
75.00 -25.00% $9.50 -5.00%
80.00(1) -20.00% $10.00 0.00%
90.00 -10.00% $10.00 0.00%
94.00 -6.00% $10.00 0.00%
95.00 -5.00% $10.00 0.00%
97.00 -3.00% $10.00 0.00%
100.00(2) 0.00% $14.92 (3) 49.20%
102.00 2.00% $14.92 49.20%
105.00 5.00% $14.92 49.20%
110.00 10.00% $14.92 49.20%
120.00 20.00% $14.92 49.20%
130.00 30.00% $14.92 49.20%
135.00 35.00% $14.92 49.20%
140.00 40.00% $14.92 49.20%
149.20(4) 49.20% $14.92 49.20%
150.00 50.00% $15.00 50.00%
154.00 54.00% $15.40 54.00%
160.00 60.00% $16.00 60.00%

(1)This is the Threshold Value.
(2)The Starting Value was set to 100.00 on the Pricing Date.
(3)This amount represents the sum of the principal amount and the Step Up Payment of $4.92.
(4)This is the Step Up Value.
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-5
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Redemption Amount Calculation Examples
Example 1
The Ending Value is 75.00, or 75.00% of the Starting Value:
Starting Value: 100.00
Threshold Value: 80.00
Ending Value: 75.00

Redemption Amount per unit

Example 2
The Ending Value is
95.00, or 95.00% of the
Starting Value:
Starting Value: 100.00
Threshold Value: 80.00
Ending Value: 95.00
Redemption Amount per
unit = $10.00, the
principal amount, since
the Ending Value is less
than the Starting Value,
but is equal to or greater
than the Threshold
Value. 

Example 3
The Ending Value is 110.00, or 110.00% of the Starting Value:
Starting
Value: 100.00

Step Up
Value: 149.20

Ending
Value: 110.00

Redemption Amount per unit, the principal amount plus the Step Up Payment, since the Ending Value is
equal to or greater than the Starting Value, but less than the Step Up Value.

Example 4
The Ending Value is 154.00, or 154.00% of
the Starting Value:
Starting Value: 100.00
Step Up Value: 149.20
Ending Value: 154.00

Redemption Amount per unit
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-6
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Risk Factors
There are important differences between the notes and a conventional debt security.  An investment in the notes
involves significant risks, including those listed below. You should carefully review the more detailed explanation of
risks relating to the notes in the “Risk Factors” sections beginning on page PS-7 of product prospectus supplement
EQUITY SUN-1, page S-2 of the prospectus supplement, and page 6 of the prospectus identified above. We also urge
you to consult your investment, legal, tax, accounting, and other advisors before you invest in the notes.

●Depending on the performance of the Basket as measured shortly before the maturity date, your investment may resultin a loss; there is no guaranteed return of principal.

●Your return on the notes may be less than the yield you could earn by owning a conventional fixed or floating ratedebt security of comparable maturity.

●Your investment return may be less than a comparable investment directly in the stocks included in the BasketComponents.

●
Payments on the notes are subject to our credit risk, and actual or perceived changes in our creditworthiness are
expected to affect the value of the notes. If we become insolvent or are unable to pay our obligations, you may lose
your entire investment.

●

Our initial estimated value of the notes is lower than the public offering price of the notes. Our initial estimated value
of the notes is only an estimate. The public offering price of the notes exceeds our initial estimated value because it
includes costs associated with selling and structuring the notes, as well as hedging our obligations under the notes
with a third party, which may include MLPF&S or one of its affiliates. These costs include the underwriting discount
and an expected hedging related charge, as further described in “Structuring the Notes” on page TS-32.

●

Our initial estimated value of the notes does not represent future values of the notes and may differ from others’
estimates. Our initial estimated value of the notes is determined by reference to our internal pricing models when the
terms of the notes are set.  These pricing models consider certain factors, such as our internal funding rate on the
pricing date, the expected term of the notes, market conditions and other relevant factors existing at that time, and our
assumptions about market parameters, which can include volatility, dividend rates, interest rates and other factors. 
Different pricing models and assumptions could provide valuations for the notes that are different from our initial
estimated value. In addition, market conditions and other relevant factors in the future may change, and any of our
assumptions may prove to be incorrect. On future dates, the market value of the notes could change significantly
based on, among other things, the performance of the Basket, changes in market conditions, our creditworthiness,
interest rate movements and other relevant factors.  These factors, together with various credit, market and economic
factors over the term of the notes, are expected to reduce the price at which you may be able to sell the notes in any
secondary market and will affect the value of the notes in complex and unpredictable ways. Our initial estimated
value does not represent a minimum price at which we or any agents would be willing to buy your notes in any
secondary market (if any exists) at any time.

●Our initial estimated value is not determined by reference to credit spreads or the borrowing rate we would pay for our
conventional fixed-rate debt securities. The internal funding rate used in the determination of our initial estimated
value of the notes generally represents a discount from the credit spreads for our conventional fixed-rate debt
securities and the borrowing rate we would pay for our conventional fixed-rate debt securities. If we were to use the
interest rate implied by the credit spreads for our conventional fixed-rate debt securities, or the borrowing rate we
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would pay for our conventional fixed-rate debt securities, we would expect the economic terms of the notes to be
more favorable to you. Consequently, our use of an internal funding rate for the notes would have an adverse effect on
the economic terms of the notes, the initial estimated value of the notes on the pricing date, and the price at which you
may be able to sell the notes in any secondary market.

●
A trading market is not expected to develop for the notes. Neither we nor MLPF&S is obligated to make a market for,
or to repurchase, the notes. There is no assurance that any party will be willing to purchase your notes at any price in
any secondary market.

●

Our business, hedging and trading activities, and those of MLPF&S and our respective affiliates (including trades in
shares of companies included in the Basket Components), and any hedging and trading activities we, MLPF&S or our
respective affiliates engage in for our clients’ accounts, may affect the market value and return of the notes and may
create conflicts of interest with you.

●

Changes in the level of one of the Basket Components may be offset by changes in the levels of the other Basket
Components.  Due to the different Initial Component Weights (as defined in “The Basket” section below), changes in
the levels of some Basket Components will have a more substantial impact on the value of the Basket than similar
changes in the levels of the other Basket Components.

●An Index sponsor (as defined below) may adjust the relevant Basket Component in a way that may adversely affect itslevel and your interests, and has no obligation to consider your interests.

●You will have no rights of a holder of the securities included in the Basket Components, and you will not be entitledto receive securities or dividends or other distributions by the issuers of those securities.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-7
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

●
While we, MLPF&S or our respective affiliates may from time to time own securities of companies included in the
Basket Components, we, MLPF&S and our respective affiliates do not control any company included in the Basket
Components, and have not verified any disclosure made by any other company.

●

Your return on the notes may be affected by factors affecting the international securities markets, specifically changes
in the countries represented by the Basket Components. Because the Index sponsor of the MSCI Emerging Markets
Index converts the prices of the securities included in the MSCI Emerging Markets Index into U.S. dollars in
calculating its level, you will be exposed to currency exchange rate risk with respect to each of the currencies in
which the securities included in the MSCI Emerging Markets Index trade. However, with respect to any other Basket
Component, you will not obtain the benefit of any increase in the value of the currencies in which the securities in the
Basket Components trade against the U.S. dollar which you would have received if you had owned the securities in
the Basket Components during the term of your notes, although the value of the Basket may be adversely affected by
general exchange rate movements in the market.

●There may be potential conflicts of interest involving the calculation agent, which is MLPF&S.  We have the right to
appoint and remove the calculation agent.

●The U.S. federal income tax consequences of the notes are uncertain, and may be adverse to a holder of the notes.  See“Summary of U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences” below.

●

The conclusion that no portion of the interest paid or credited or deemed to be paid or credited on a note will be
“Participating Debt Interest” subject to Canadian withholding tax is based in part on the current published administrative
position of the CRA.  There cannot be any assurance that CRA’s current published administrative practice will not be
subject to change, including potential expansion in the current administrative interpretation of Participating Debt
Interest subject to Canadian withholding tax.  If, at any time, the interest paid or credited or deemed to be paid or
credited on a note is subject to Canadian withholding tax, you will receive an amount that is less than the Redemption
Amount. You should consult your own adviser as to the potential for such withholding and the potential for reduction
or refund of part or all of such withholding, including under any bilateral Canadian tax treaty the benefits of which
you may be entitled. For a discussion of the Canadian federal income tax consequences of investing in the notes, see
“Summary of Canadian Federal Income Tax Consequences” below, “Canadian Taxation—Debt Securities” on page 50 of the
prospectus dated February 1, 2017, and “Supplemental Discussion of Canadian Federal Income Tax Consequences” on
page PS-42 of product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1.

Additional Risk Factors

There are risks associated with emerging markets.
An investment in the notes will involve risks not generally associated with investments which have no emerging
market component. In particular, many emerging nations are undergoing rapid change, involving the restructuring of
economic, political, financial and legal systems. Regulatory and tax environments may be subject to change without
review or appeal. Many emerging markets suffer from underdevelopment of capital markets and tax regulation. The
risk of expropriation and nationalization remains a threat. Guarding against such risks is made more difficult by low
levels of corporate disclosure and unreliability of economic and financial data.
Other Terms of the Notes

Market Measure Business Day
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The following definition shall supersede and replace the definition of a “Market Measure Business Day” set forth in
product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1:
A “Market Measure Business Day” means a day on which:

(A)

the London Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the São Paulo Stock Exchange, and the Korea Stock
Exchange (as to the MSCI Emerging Markets Index), each of the Eurex (as to the EURO STOXX 50® Index), the
London Stock Exchange (as to the FTSE® 100 Index), the Tokyo Stock Exchange (as to the Nikkei Stock Average
Index), the Six Swiss Exchange (as to the Swiss Market Index), the Australian Stock Exchange (as to the
S&P/ASX 200 Index) and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (as to the Hang Seng® Index) (or any successor to
the foregoing exchanges) are open for trading; and

(B)the Basket Components or any successors thereto are calculated and published.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-8
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The Basket
The Basket is designed to allow investors to participate in the percentage changes in the levels of the Basket
Components from the Starting Value to the Ending Value of the Basket. The Basket Components are described in the
section “The Basket Components” below. Each Basket Component was assigned an initial weight on the pricing date, as
set forth in the table below.
For more information on the calculation of the value of the Basket, please see the section entitled “Description of the
Notes—Basket Market Measures” beginning on page PS-35 of product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1.
On pricing date, for each Basket Component, the Initial Component Weight, the closing level, the Component Ratio
and the initial contribution to the Basket value were as follows:

Basket Component Bloomberg
Symbol

Initial Component
Weight

Closing
Level(1)(2)

Component
Ratio(1)(3)

Initial Basket
Value
Contribution

MSCI Emerging
Markets Index MXEF 50.00 959.79 0.05209473 50.00

EURO STOXX 50®
Index SX5E 20.00 3,000.06 0.00666653 20.00

FTSE® 100 Index UKX 10.00 6,711.93 0.00148988 10.00
Nikkei Stock Average
Index NKY 10.00 20,392.58 0.00049037 10.00

Swiss Market Index SMI 3.75 8,414.48 0.00044566 3.75
S&P/ASX 200 Index AS51 3.75 5,505.822 0.00068110 3.75
Hang Seng® Index HSI 2.50 25,623.53 0.00009757 2.50

Starting Value 100.00

(1)
These were the closing levels of the Basket Components on the pricing
date.

(2)
Each Component Ratio equals the Initial Component Weight of the relevant Basket Component (as a percentage)
multiplied by 100.00, and then divided by the closing level of that Basket Component on the pricing date and
rounded to eight decimal places.

The calculation agent will calculate the value of the Basket on each calculation day during the Maturity Valuation
Period by summing the products of the closing level for each Basket Component on such calculation day and the
Component Ratio applicable to such Basket Component. If a Market Disruption Event occurs as to any Basket
Component on any scheduled calculation day, the closing level of that Basket Component will be determined as more
fully described beginning on page 37 of product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1 in the section “Description of
the Notes—Observation Level or Ending Value of the Basket”.
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-9
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

While actual historical information on the Basket did not exist before the pricing date, the following graph sets forth
the hypothetical historical performance of the Basket from January 1, 2008 through December 20, 2018.  The graph is
based upon actual daily historical levels of the Basket Components, hypothetical Component Ratios based on the
closing levels of the Basket Components as of December 31, 2007, and a Basket value of 100.00 as of that date. This
hypothetical historical data on the Basket is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the Basket or what
the value of the notes may be. Any hypothetical historical upward or downward trend in the value of the Basket during
any period set forth below is not an indication that the value of the Basket is more or less likely to increase or decrease
at any time over the term of the notes.
Hypothetical Historical Performance of the Basket

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-10
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The Basket Components
All disclosures contained in this term sheet regarding the Basket Components, including, without limitation, their
make-up, method of calculation, and changes in their components, have been derived from publicly available sources.
The information reflects the policies of, and is subject to change by each of MSCI Inc. (“MSCI”) with respect to the
MSCI Emerging Markets Index (the “MXEF”), STOXX Limited (“STOXX”) with respect to the EURO STOXX 50®

Index (the “SX5E”), FTSE International Limited (“FTSE”) with respect to the FTSE® 100 Index (the “UKX”), Nikkei Inc.
(“Nikkei”) with respect to the Nikkei 225 Index (the “NKY”), S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC (“S&P”), a division of S&P
Global, with respect to the S&P/ASX 200 Index (the “AS51”), the Geneva, Zurich, SIX Group Ltd., certain of its
subsidiaries, and the Management Committee of the SIX Swiss Exchange (the “SIX Exchange”), with respect to the
Swiss Market Index (the “SMI”), and Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited (“HSIL”) with respect to the Hang Seng®

Index (the “HSI”) (MSCI, STOXX, FTSE, Nikkei, S&P, Six Exchange and HSIL together, the “Index sponsors”). The
Index sponsors have no obligation to continue to publish, and may discontinue or suspend the publication of any
Basket Component at any time. The consequences of any Index sponsor discontinuing publication of a Basket
Component are discussed in the section entitled “Description of the Notes—Discontinuance of an Index” beginning on
page PS-30 of product prospectus supplement EQUITY SUN-1. None of us, the calculation agent, or MLPF&S
accepts any responsibility for the calculation, maintenance or publication of any Basket Component or any successor
index.

The MSCI Emerging Markets Index
The MSCI indices were founded in 1969 by Capital International as the first international performance benchmarks
constructed to facilitate accurate comparison of world markets. Morgan Stanley acquired the rights to license the
MSCI indices in 1986. In November 1998, Morgan Stanley transferred all rights to the MSCI indices to MSCI, a
Delaware corporation formed and operated jointly by Morgan Stanley and Capital International. In 2004, MSCI
acquired Barra, Inc., a provider of risk analytics, and firm-wide investment risk management systems and services and
merged this with MSCI. In 2007, MSCI completed an initial public offering and was listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, with Morgan Stanley retaining a controlling interest. In 2009, MSCI and Morgan Stanley fully separated.
The MSCI single country standard equity indices have covered the world’s developed markets since 1969, and in 1988,
MSCI commenced coverage of the emerging markets.
All information regarding the index reflects the policies of, and is subject to change by, MSCI.
The MXEF offers a representation of emerging markets based on the following countries: Brazil, Chile, China,
Colombia, the Czech Republic, Egypt, Greece, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Korea, Malaysia, Mexico, Pakistan, Peru,
the Philippines, Poland, Qatar, Russia, South Africa, Taiwan, Thailand, Turkey and the United Arab Emirates. With
839 constituents, the MXEF covers approximately 85% of the free float-adjusted market capitalization in each
country. It is based on the Global Investable Market Indices methodology which emphasizes index liquidity,
investability and replicability. The MXEF has a base value of 100.00 and a base date of December 31, 1987.
The Country Indices
The components of each MSCI EM Constituent Country Index used to be selected by MSCI from among the universe
of securities eligible for inclusion in the MSCI EM Constituent Country Index so as to target an 85% free
float-adjusted market representation level within each of a number of industry groups, subject to adjustments to (i)
provide for sufficient liquidity, (ii) reflect foreign investment restrictions (only those securities that can be held by
non-residents of the country corresponding to the relevant MSCI EM Constituent Country Index are included) and (iii)
meet certain other investability criteria. Following a change in MSCI’s methodology implemented in May 2008, the
85% target is now measured at the level of the country universe of eligible securities rather than the industry group
level—so each MSCI EM Constituent Country Index will seek to include the securities that represent 85% of the free
float-adjusted market capitalization of all securities eligible for inclusion—but will still be subject to liquidity, foreign
investment restrictions and other investability adjustments. MSCI defines “free float” as total shares excluding shares
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held by strategic investors such as governments, corporations, controlling shareholders and management, and shares
subject to foreign ownership restrictions.
Calculation of the MSCI EM Constituent Country Indices
Each MSCI EM Constituent Country Index is a free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to
measure the market performance, including price performance, of the equity securities in that country. Each MSCI
EM Constituent Country Index is calculated in the relevant local currency as well as in U.S. dollars, with price, gross
and net returns.
Each component is included in the relevant MSCI EM Constituent Country Index at a weight that reflects the ratio of
its free float-adjusted market capitalization (i.e., free public float multiplied by price) to the free float-adjusted market
capitalization of all the components in that MSCI EM Constituent Country Index. MSCI defines the free float of a
security as the proportion of shares outstanding that is deemed to be available for purchase in the public equity
markets by international investors.
Calculation of the MXEF
The performance of the MXEF on any given day represents the weighted performance of all of the components
included in all of the MSCI EM Constituent Country Indices. Each component in the MXEF is included at a weight
that reflects the ratio of its free float-adjusted market capitalization (i.e., free public float multiplied by price) to the
free float-adjusted market capitalization of all the components included in all of the MSCI EM Constituent Country
Indices.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-11
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Maintenance of and Changes to the MXEF
MSCI maintains the MXEF with the objective of reflecting, on a timely basis, the evolution of the underlying equity
markets and segments. In maintaining the MXEF, emphasis is also placed on continuity, continuous investability of
constituents, replicability, index stability and low turnover in the MXEF.
As part of the changes to MSCI’s methodology which became effective in May 2008, maintenance of the indices falls
into three broad categories:

●semi-annual reviews, which will occur each May and November and will involve a comprehensive reevaluation of themarket, the universe of eligible securities and other factors involved in composing the MXEF;

●
quarterly reviews, which will occur each February, May, August and November and will focus on significant changes
in the market since the last semi-annual review and on including significant new eligible securities (such as IPOs,
which were not eligible for earlier inclusion in the MXEF); and

●
ongoing event-related changes, which will generally be reflected in the indices at the time of the event and will
include changes resulting from mergers, acquisitions, spin-offs, bankruptcies, reorganizations and other similar
corporate events.
Based on these reviews, additional components may be added, and current components may be removed, at any time.
MSCI generally announces all changes resulting from semi-annual reviews, quarterly reviews and ongoing events in
advance of their implementation, although in exceptional cases they may be announced during market hours for same
or next day implementation.
Prices and Exchange Rates
Prices
The prices used to calculate the MXEF are the official exchange closing prices or those figures accepted as such.
MSCI reserves the right to use an alternative pricing source on any given day.
Exchange Rates
MSCI uses the closing spot rates published by WM / Reuters at 4:00 p.m., London time. MSCI uses WM / Reuters
rates for all countries for which it provides indices.
In case WM/Reuters does not provide rates for specific markets on given days (for example Christmas Day and New
Year’s Day), the previous business day’s rates are normally used. MSCI independently monitors the exchange rates on
all its indices and may, under exceptional circumstances, elect to use an alternative exchange rate if the WM / Reuters
rates are not available, or if MSCI determines that the WM / Reuters rates are not reflective of market circumstances
for a given currency on a particular day. In such circumstances, an announcement would be sent to clients with the
related information. If appropriate, MSCI may conduct a consultation with the investment community to gather
feedback on the most relevant exchange rate.
The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the MXEF in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of
the MSCI Emerging Markets Index was 959.79.
Historical Performance of the MSCI Emerging Markets Index
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

This historical data on the MXEF is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the MXEF or what the
value of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the MXEF during any period set
forth above is not an indication that the level of the MXEF is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time
over the term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels and trading pattern of the
MXEF.
License Agreement
We have entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with MSCI providing for the license to us, in exchange for a
fee, to use the index in connection with the issuance and marketing of securities, including the notes.
The sublicense agreement provides that the following language must be stated in this term sheet:
“THE NOTES ARE NOT SPONSORED, ENDORSED, SOLD OR PROMOTED BY MSCI INC. (“MSCI”), ANY
AFFILIATE OF MSCI OR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR COMPILING
ANY MSCI INDEX. THE MSCI INDICES ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF MSCI. MSCI AND THE
MSCI INDEX NAMES ARE SERVICE MARK(S) OF MSCI OR ITS AFFILIATES AND HAVE BEEN
LICENSED FOR USE FOR CERTAIN PURPOSES BY BNS. NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR
ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX
MAKES ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO THE OWNERS OF THE
NOTES OR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC REGARDING THE ADVISABILITY OF INVESTING IN
FINANCIAL SECURITIES GENERALLY OR IN THE NOTES PARTICULARLY OR THE ABILITY OF ANY
MSCI INDEX TO TRACK CORRESPONDING STOCK MARKET PERFORMANCE. MSCI OR ITS AFFILIATES
ARE THE LICENSORS OF CERTAIN TRADEMARKS, SERVICE MARKS AND TRADE NAMES AND OF THE
MSCI INDICES WHICH ARE DETERMINED, COMPOSED AND CALCULATED BY MSCI WITHOUT
REGARD TO THE NOTES OR THE ISSUER OR OWNER OF A NOTE. NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS
AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR COMPILING ANY
MSCI INDEX HAS ANY OBLIGATION TO TAKE THE NEEDS OF THE ISSUERS OR OWNERS OF THE
NOTES INTO CONSIDERATION IN DETERMINING, COMPOSING OR CALCULATING THE MSCI INDICES.
NEITHER MSCI, ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING
OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OR HAS PARTICIPATED IN THE
DETERMINATION OF THE TIMING OF, PRICES AT, OR QUANTITIES OF THE NOTES TO BE ISSUED OR
IN THE DETERMINATION OR CALCULATION OF THE EQUATION BY WHICH THE NOTES ARE
REDEEMABLE FOR CASH. NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY
INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, THE MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX HAS ANY
OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY TO THE OWNERS OF THE NOTES IN CONNECTION WITH THE
ADMINISTRATION, MARKETING OR OFFERING OF THE NOTES.
ALTHOUGH MSCI SHALL OBTAIN INFORMATION FOR INCLUSION IN OR FOR USE IN THE
CALCULATION OF THE MSCI INDICES FROM SOURCES WHICH MSCI CONSIDERS RELIABLE,
NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO
MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX WARRANTS OR GUARANTEES THE ORIGINALITY,
ACCURACY AND/OR THE COMPLETENESS OF ANY MSCI INDEX OR ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN.
NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO,
MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX MAKES ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO
RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY LICENSEE, LICENSEE’S CUSTOMERS OR COUNTERPARTIES, ISSUERS
OF THE FINANCIAL SECURITIES, OWNERS OF THE FINANCIAL SECURITIES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON
OR ENTITY, FROM THE USE OF ANY MSCI INDEX OR ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN IN
CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS LICENSED HEREUNDER OR FOR ANY OTHER USE. NEITHER MSCI,
ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR

Edgar Filing: BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA - Form 424B2

19



COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX SHALL HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS OR
INTERRUPTIONS OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY MSCI INDEX OR ANY DATA INCLUDED
THEREIN. FURTHER, NEITHER MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES NOR ANY OTHER PARTY INVOLVED IN,
OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, AND MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES AND ANY OTHER PARTY
INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX HEREBY EXPRESSLY
DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
WITH RESPECT TO ANY MSCI INDEX AND ANY DATA INCLUDED THEREIN. WITHOUT LIMITING ANY
OF THE FOREGOING, IN NO EVENT SHALL MSCI, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES OR ANY OTHER PARTY
INVOLVED IN, OR RELATED TO, MAKING OR COMPILING ANY MSCI INDEX HAVE ANY LIABILITY
FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL OR ANY OTHER DAMAGES
(INCLUDING LOST PROFITS) EVEN IF NOTIFIED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.
No purchaser, seller, or holder of the Notes, or any other person or entity, should use or refer to any MSCI trade name,
trademark, or service mark to sponsor, endorse, market, or promote the Notes without first contacting MSCI to
determine whether MSCI’s permission is required. Under no circumstances may any person or entity claim any
affiliation with MSCI without the prior written permission of MSCI.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-13
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The EURO STOXX 50® Index

The SX5E is a capitalization-weighted index of 50 European blue-chip stocks in 11 Eurozone countries. Publication of
the SX5E began on February 26, 1998, based on an initial index value of 1,000 at December 31, 1991. The level of the
SX5E is disseminated on, and additional information about the SX5E is published on, the STOXX website.
Information contained in the STOXX website is not incorporated by reference in, and should not be considered a part
of, this term sheet.
As of October 31, 2018, the top ten industry sectors which comprise the SX5E represent the following weights in the
SX5E: Banks (11.2%), Industrial Goods & Services (10.9%), Health Care (10.4%), Personal & Household Goods
(10.2%), Technology (10.1%), Oil & Gas (7.9%), Insurance (6.8%), Chemicals (6.5%), Telecommunications (4.8%)
and Automobiles & Parts (4.4%). As of October 31, 2018, the eight countries which comprise the SX5E represent the
following weights therein: France (39.2%), Germany (30.8%), Netherlands (10.4%), Spain (10.2%), Italy (4.7%),
Belgium (2.5%), Finland (1.2%) and Ireland (1.0%).

Index Composition and Maintenance

For each of the 19 EURO STOXX regional supersector indices, the stocks are ranked in terms of free-float market
capitalization. The largest stocks are added to the selection list until the coverage is close to, but still less than, 60% of
the free-float market capitalization of the corresponding supersector index. If the next highest-ranked stock brings the
coverage closer to 60% in absolute terms, then it is also added to the selection list. All current stocks in the SX5E are
then added to the selection list. All of the stocks on the selection list are then ranked in terms of free-float market
capitalization to produce the final index selection list. The largest 40 stocks on the selection list are selected; the
remaining 10 stocks are selected from the largest remaining current stocks ranked between 41 and 60; if the number of
stocks selected is still below 50, then the largest remaining stocks are selected until there are 50 stocks. In exceptional
cases, STOXX’s management board can add stocks to and remove them from the selection list.

The SX5E components are subject to a capped maximum index weight of 10%, which is applied on a quarterly basis.
The composition of the SX5E is reviewed annually, based on the closing stock data on the last trading day in August.
Changes in the composition of the SX5E are made to ensure that the SX5E includes the 50 market sector leaders from
within the SX5E.
The SX5E is subject to a “fast exit rule.” The SX5E components are monitored for any changes based on the monthly
selection list ranking. A stock is deleted from the SX5E if: (a) it ranks 75 or below on the monthly selection list and
(b) it ranked 75 or below on the selection list of the previous month. The highest-ranked stock that is not an SX5E
component will replace it. Changes will be implemented on the close of the fifth trading day of the month, and are
effective the next trading day.
The SX5E is also subject to a “fast entry rule.” All stocks on the latest selection lists and initial public offering (IPO)
stocks are reviewed for a fast-track addition on a quarterly basis. A stock is added, if (a) it qualifies for the latest
STOXX blue-chip selection list generated at the end of February, May, August or November and (b) it ranks within
the “lower buffer” (ranks 1-25) on this selection list. The SX5E is also reviewed on an ongoing basis. Corporate actions
(including initial public offerings, mergers and takeovers, spin-offs, delistings, and bankruptcy) that affect the SX5E
composition are immediately reviewed. Any changes are announced, implemented, and effective in line with the type
of corporate action and the magnitude of the effect.
Index Calculation
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The SX5E is calculated with the “Laspeyres formula,” which measures the aggregate price changes in the component
stocks against a fixed base quantity weight. The formula for calculating the SX5E value can be expressed as follows:

Index = free float market capitalization of the Index at the time
divisor of the Index at the time
The “free float market capitalization of the Index” is equal to the sum of the products of the closing price, number of
shares, free float factor, and weighting cap factor for the component company as of the time that the SX5E is being
calculated.
The SX5E is calculated using a divisor that helps to maintain the continuity of the SX5E’s value so that corporate
actions do not artificially increase or decrease the level of the SX5E.The divisor of the SX5E is adjusted to maintain
the continuity of the SX5E’s values across changes due to corporate actions, such as cash dividends, rights offerings,
stock dividends from treasury shares, repurchases of shares and self-tender, and spin-offs.
The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the SX5E in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of
the SX5E Index was 3,000.06.
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

Historical Performance of the EURO STOXX 50® Index

This historical data on the SX5E is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the SX5E or what the value
of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the SX5E during any period set forth
above is not an indication that the level of the SX5E is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the
term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels of the SX5E.
License Agreement
BNS has entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with STOXX, which grants BNS a license in exchange for a
fee to use the SX5E in connection with the issuance of certain securities, including the notes.
STOXX, Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers have no relationship to BNS,
other than the licensing of the SX5E and the related trademarks for use in connection with the notes.
STOXX, Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers do not:

·sponsor, endorse, sell or promote the notes;

·recommend that any person invest in the notes or any other financial products;

·have any responsibility or liability for or make any decisions about the timing, amount or pricing of the notes;

·have any responsibility or liability for the administration, management or marketing of the notes; and

·consider the needs of the notes or the owners of the notes in determining, composing or calculating the SX5E or haveany obligation to do so.

STOXX, Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers give no warranty, and exclude
any liability (whether in negligence or otherwise) in connection with the notes or their performance.
STOXX does not assume any contractual relationship with the purchasers of the notes or any third parties.
Specifically,
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·
The Sponsor, Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers do not make any
warranty, express or implied and disclaim any and all warranty about:

·
the results to be obtained by the notes, the owner of the notes or any other person in connection with the use of the
SX5E and the data included in the SX5E;

·the accuracy, timeliness, and completeness of the SX5E or its data;

· the merchantability and the fitness for a particular purpose or use of the SX5E or its data; and

·the performance of the notes generally.

·
STOXX, Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers give no warranty and exclude
any liability, for any errors, omissions or interruptions in the SX5E or its data; and

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-15
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

·

under no circumstances will Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or data providers be liable
(whether in negligence or otherwise) for any lost profits or indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages or
losses, arising as a result of such errors, omissions or interruptions in the SX5E or its data or generally in relation to
the notes, even in circumstances where the Sponsor Deutsche Börse Group and their licensors, research partners or
data providers are aware that such loss or damage may occur

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-16
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The FTSE® 100 Index
The UKX is a market-capitalization weighted index calculated, published and disseminated by FTSE, an independent
company wholly owned by the London Stock Exchange Group (the “LSE”). The UKX is designed to measure the
composite performance of the 100 largest UK domiciled blue chip companies that pass screening for size and liquidity
traded on the LSE. The UKX was launched on January 3, 1984 and has a base date of December 30, 1983. The UKX
is reported by Bloomberg under the ticker symbol “UKX.”
The UKX is calculated by (i) multiplying the per share price of each stock included in the UKX by the number of
outstanding shares and by the free float factor applicable to such stock, (ii) calculating the sum of all these products
(such sum referred to hereinafter as the “FTSE Aggregate Market Value”) as of the starting date of the UKX and
(iii) dividing the FTSE Aggregate Market Value by a divisor which represents the total issued share capital of the
UKX on the base date and which can be adjusted to allow changes in the issued share capital of individual underlying
stocks (including the deletion and addition of stocks, the substitution of stocks, stock dividends and stock splits) to be
made without distorting the UKX. Because of such capitalization weighting, movements in share prices of companies
with relatively larger market capitalization will have a greater effect on the level of the entire UKX than will
movements in share prices of companies with relatively smaller market capitalization.
The 100 stocks included in the UKX (the “FTSE 100 Index Underlying Stocks”) were selected from a reference group
of stocks trading on the LSE which were selected by excluding certain stocks that have low liquidity based on public
float, accuracy and reliability of prices, size and number of trading days. The FTSE 100 Index Underlying Stocks
were selected from this reference group by selecting 100 stocks with the largest market value. A list of the issuers of
the FTSE 100 Index Underlying Stocks is available from FTSE. The UKX is reviewed quarterly by the FTSE
Europe/Middle East/Africa Regional Committee (the “Committee”) in order to maintain continuity in the level. The
FTSE 100 Index Underlying Stocks may be replaced, if necessary, in accordance with deletion/addition rules which
provide generally for the removal and replacement of a stock from the UKX if such stock is delisted or its issuer is
subject to a takeover offer that has been declared unconditional or it has ceased to be a viable component of the UKX.
To maintain continuity, a stock will be added at the quarterly review if it has risen to 90th place or above and a stock
will be deleted if at the quarterly review it has fallen to 111th place or below, in each case ranked on the basis of
market value.

The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the UKX in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of
the UKX was 6,711.93.
Historical Performance of the FTSE® 100 Index
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This historical data on the UKX is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the UKX or what the value
of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the UKX during any period set forth
above is not an indication that the level of the UKX is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the
term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels of the UKX.
License Agreement
BNS or one of its affiliates has entered into a non-exclusive license agreement with FTSE, whereby BNS and its
affiliates and subsidiary companies and certain of its affiliates, in exchange for a fee, are permitted to use the UKX,
which is owned and published by FTSE, in connection with certain products, including the notes.
Neither FTSE nor the LSE makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, to the owners of the notes or any
member of the public regarding the advisability of investing in structured products generally or in the notes
particularly, or the ability of the UKX to track
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-17
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

general stock market performance. FTSE and the LSE’s only relationship with BNS is the licensing of certain
trademarks and trade names of FTSE, respectively, without regard to us or the notes. FTSE and the LSE have no
obligation to take the needs of us or the holders of the notes into consideration in determining, composing or
calculating the UKX Neither FTSE nor the LSE is responsible for and has not participated in the determination of the
timing, price or quantity of the notes to be issued or in the determination or calculation of the amount due at maturity
of the notes. Neither FTSE nor the LSE has any obligation or liability in connection with the administration,
marketing or trading of the notes.
The notes are not in any way sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by FTSE or the LSE, and neither FTSE nor the
LSE makes any claim, prediction, warranty or representation whatsoever, expressly or impliedly, either as to the
results to be obtained from the use of the UKX and/or the figure at which the said component stands at any particular
time on any particular day or otherwise, or the suitability of the UKX for the purpose to which it is being put in
connection with the notes. The UKX is compiled and calculated by FTSE. However, neither FTSE nor the LSE shall
be liable (whether in negligence or otherwise) to any person for any error in the UKX and neither FTSE nor the LSE
shall be under any obligation to advise any person of any error therein.
“FTSE®,” “FTSETM,” “FT-SE®” and “Footsie®” are trade marks of the London Stock Exchange Group companies and are
used by FTSE International Limited under license. “All-World,” “All-Share” and “All-Small” are trade marks of FTSE
International Limited.
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The Nikkei Stock Average Index
The NKY is a stock index that measures the composite price performance of selected Japanese stocks. The NKY is
based on 225 underlying stocks (the “Nikkei Underlying Stocks”) trading on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (“TSE”),
representing a broad cross-section of Japanese industries. All 225 Nikkei Underlying Stocks are stocks listed in the
First Section of the TSE. Stocks listed in the First Section of the TSE are among the most actively traded stocks on the
TSE. Nikkei’s rules require that the 75 most liquid issues (one-third of the component count of the NKY) be included
in the NKY. Nikkei first calculated and published the NKY in 1970; prior to 1970, the TSE calculated the NKY. The
NKY is reported by Bloomberg under the ticker symbol “NKY.”
The 225 companies included in the NKY are divided into six sector categories: Technology, Financials, Consumer
Goods, Materials, Capital Goods/Others and Transportation and Utilities. These six sector categories are further
divided into 36 industrial classifications as follows:
◾ Technology — Pharmaceuticals, Electrical Machinery, Automobiles, Precision Machinery, Telecommunications;
◾ Financials — Banks, Miscellaneous Finance, Securities, Insurance;
◾ Consumer Goods — Marine Products, Food, Retail, Services;
◾ Materials — Mining, Textiles, Paper and Pulp, Chemicals, Oil, Rubber, Ceramics, Steel, Nonferrous Metals, Trading
Houses;
◾ Capital Goods/Others — Construction, Machinery, Shipbuilding, Transportation Equipment, Miscellaneous
Manufacturing, Real Estate; and
◾ Transportation and Utilities — Railroads and Buses, Trucking, Shipping, Airlines, Warehousing, Electric Power, Gas.
Calculation of the NKY
The NKY is a modified, price-weighted index (i.e., a Nikkei Underlying Stock’s weight in the NKY is based on its
price per share rather than the total market capitalization of the issuer) which is calculated by (i) multiplying the per
share price of each Nikkei Underlying Stock by the corresponding weighting factor for such Nikkei Underlying Stock
(a “Weight Factor”), (ii) calculating the sum of all these products and (iii) dividing such sum by a divisor (the “Divisor”).
The Divisor was initially set at 225 for the date of May 16, 1949 (the date on which the TSE was reopened after
World War II) using historical numbers from that date. The Divisor is subject to periodic adjustments as set forth
below. Each Weight Factor is computed by dividing ¥50 by the presumed par value of the relevant Nikkei Underlying
Stock, so that the share price of each Nikkei Underlying Stock when multiplied by its Weight Factor corresponds to a
share price based on a uniform par value of ¥50. The stock prices used in the calculation of the NKY are those
reported by a primary market for the Nikkei Underlying Stocks (currently the TSE). The level of the NKY is
calculated once every 15 seconds during TSE trading hours.
In order to maintain continuity in the NKY in the event of certain changes due to non-market factors affecting the
Nikkei Underlying Stocks, such as the addition or deletion of stocks, substitution of stocks, stock splits or
distributions of assets to stockholders, the Divisor used in calculating the NKY is adjusted in a manner designed to
prevent any instantaneous change or discontinuity in the level of the NKY. Thereafter, the Divisor remains at the new
value until a further adjustment is necessary as the result of another change. As a result of such change affecting any
Nikkei Underlying Stock, the Divisor is adjusted in such a way that the sum of all share prices immediately after the
change multiplied by the applicable Weight Factor and divided by the new Divisor (i.e., the level of the NKY
immediately after such change) will equal the level of the NKY immediately prior to the change.
Standards for Listing and Maintenance
A Nikkei Underlying Stock may be deleted or added by Nikkei. Any stock becoming ineligible for listing in the First
Section of the TSE due to any of the following reasons will be deleted from the Nikkei Underlying Stocks:
(i) bankruptcy of the issuer, (ii) merger of the issuer with, or acquisition of the issuer by, another company,
(iii) delisting of such stock, (iv) transfer of such stock to the “Seiri-Meigara” because of excess debt of the issuer or
because of any other reason or (v) transfer of such stock to the Second Section. In addition, a component stock
transferred to the “Kanri-Meigara” (posts for stocks under supervision) becomes a candidate for deletion. Nikkei
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Underlying Stocks with relatively low liquidity, based on trading value and rate of price fluctuation over the past five
years, may be deleted by Nikkei. Upon deletion of a stock from the Nikkei Underlying Stocks, Nikkei will select a
replacement for such deleted Nikkei Underlying Stock in accordance with certain criteria. In an exceptional case, a
newly listed stock in the First Section of the TSE that is recognized by Nikkei to be representative of a market may be
added to the Nikkei Underlying Stocks. In such a case, an existing Nikkei Underlying Stock with low trading volume
and deemed not to be representative of a market will be deleted by Nikkei.
A list of the issuers of the Nikkei Underlying Stocks constituting the NKY is published by Nikkei. Nikkei may delete,
add or substitute any stock underlying the NKY.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-19
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The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the NKY in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of
the NKY Index was 20,392.58.
Historical Performance of the Nikkei Stock Average Index

This historical data on the NKY is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the NKY or what the value
of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the NKY during any period set forth
above is not an indication that the level of the NKY is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the
term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels of the NKY.
License Agreement
BNS will enter into an agreement with Nikkei providing us with a non-exclusive license with the right to use the NKY
in exchange for a fee.  The NKY is the intellectual property of Nikkei. “Nikkei,” “Nikkei Stock Average,” “Nikkei
Average,” and “Nikkei 225” are the service marks of Nikkei. Nikkei reserves all the rights, including copyright, to the
NKY.
The notes are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by Nikkei. Nikkei does not make any warranty or
representation whatsoever, express or implied, either as to the results to be obtained as to the use of the NKY or the
figure as which the NKY stands at any particular day or otherwise. The NKY is compiled and calculated solely by
Nikkei. However, Nikkei shall not be liable to any person for any error in the NKY and Nikkei shall not be under any
obligation to advise any person, including a purchaser or seller of the notes, of any error therein.
In addition, Nikkei gives no assurance regarding any modification or change in any methodology used in calculating
the NKY and is under no obligation to continue the calculation, publication and dissemination of the NKY.
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The Swiss Market Index
 The Swiss Market Index (Bloomberg ticker “SMI”):
●was first launched with a base level of 1,500 as of June 30, 1988; and

● is sponsored, calculated, published and disseminated by the SIX
Exchange.

The SMI® is a price return float-adjusted market capitalization-weighted index of the 20 largest stocks traded on the
Swiss Stock Exchange. The Management Committee of SIX Swiss Exchange is supported by an Index Commission
(advisory board) in all index-related matters, notably in connection with changes to the SMI® rules and adjustments,
additions and exclusions outside of the established review and acceptance period. The Index Commission meets at
least twice annually.
Index Composition and Selection Criteria
The SMI® is comprised of the 20 highest ranked stocks traded on the Swiss Stock Exchange that have a free float of
20% or more and that are not investment companies. The equity universe is largely Swiss domestic companies;
however, in some cases, foreign issuers with a primary listing on the Swiss Stock Exchange or investment companies
that do not hold any shares of any other eligible company and that have a primary listing on the Swiss Stock Exchange
may be included.
The ranking of each security is determined by a combination of the following criteria:

●average free-float market capitalization (compared to the capitalization of the entire Swiss Stock Exchange indexfamily), and

●cumulative on order book turnover (compared to the total turnover of the Swiss Stock Exchange index family).
Each of these two factors is assigned a 50% weighting in ranking the stocks eligible for the SMI®.
The SMI® is reconstituted annually after prior notice of at least two months on the third Friday in September after the
close of trading.
The reconstitution is based on data from the previous July 1 through June 30. Provisional interim selection (ranking)
lists are also published following the end of the third, fourth and first financial quarters.
In order to reduce turnover, an index constituent will not be replaced unless it is ranked below 23 or, if it is ranked 21
or 22, if another share ranks 18 or higher. If a company has primary listings on several exchanges and less than 50%
of that company’s total turnover is generated on the Swiss Stock Exchange, it will not be included in the SMI® unless
it ranks at least 18 or better on the selection list on the basis of its turnover alone (i.e., without considering its free
float).
Maintenance of the SMI®
Constituent Changes. In the case of major market changes as a result of capital events such as mergers or new listings,
the Management Committee of SIX Swiss Exchange can decide at the request of the Index Commission that a security
should be admitted to the SMI® outside the annual review period as long as it clearly fulfills the criteria for inclusion.
For the same reasons, a security can also be excluded if the requirements for admission to the SMI® are no longer
fulfilled. As a general rule, extraordinary acceptances into the SMI® take place after a three-month period on a
quarterly basis after the close of trading on the third Friday of March, June, September and December (for example, a
security listed on or before the fifth trading day prior to the end of November cannot be included until the following
March). An announced insolvency is deemed to be an extraordinary event and the security will be removed from the
SMI® with five trading days’ prior notice if the circumstances permit such notice.
Number of Shares and Free Float. The securities included in the SMI® are weighted according to their free float. This
means that shares deemed to be in firm hands are subtracted from the total market capitalization of that company. The
free float is calculated on the basis of outstanding shares. Issued and outstanding equity capital is, as a rule, the total
amount of equity capital that has been fully subscribed and wholly or partially paid in and documented in the
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Commercial Register. Not counting as issued and outstanding equity capital are the approved capital and the
conditional capital of a company. The free float is calculated on the basis of listed shares only. If a company offers
several different categories of listed participation rights, each is treated separately for purposes of index calculation.
Shares held deemed to be in firm hands are shareholdings that have been acquired by one person or a group of persons
in companies domiciled in Switzerland and which, upon exceeding 5%, have been reported to the SIX Exchange.
Shares of persons and groups of persons who are subject to a shareholder agreement which is binding for more than
5% of the listed shares or who, according to publicly known facts, have a long-term interest in a company, are also
deemed to be in firm hands.
For the calculation of the number of shares in firm hands, the SIX Exchange may also use other sources than the
reports submitted to it. In particular, the SIX Exchange may use data gained from issuer surveys that it conducts itself.
In general, shares held by custodian nominees, trustee companies, investment funds, pension funds and investment
companies are deemed free-floating regardless whether a report has been made to the SIX Exchange. The SIX
Exchange classifies at its own discretion persons and groups of persons who, because of their area of activity or the
absence of important information, cannot be clearly assigned.
The free-float rule applies only to bearer shares and registered shares. Capital issued in the form of participation
certificates and bonus certificates is taken into full account in calculating the SMI® because it does not confer voting
rights.
The number of securities in the SMI® and the free-float factors are adjusted after the close of trading on four
adjustment dates per year, the third Friday of March, June, September and December. Such changes are
pre-announced at least one month before the adjustment
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-21
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date, although the Index sponsor reserves the right to take account of recent changes before the adjustment date in the
actual adjustment, so the definite new securities are announced five trading days before the adjustment date.
In order to avoid frequent slight changes to the weighting and to maintain the stability of the SMI®, any extraordinary
change of the total number of outstanding securities or the free float will only result in an extraordinary adjustment if
it exceeds 10% and 5% respectively and is in conjunction with a corporate action.
After a takeover, Six Exchange may, in exceptional cases, adjust the free float of a company upon publication of the
end results after a five-day notification period or may exclude the security from the relevant index family. When an
insolvency has been announced, an extraordinary adjustment will be made and the affected security will be removed
from the SMI® after five trading days’ notice.
The Index sponsor reserves the right to make an extraordinary adjustment, in exceptional cases, without observing the
notification period.
Calculation of the Index
The Index sponsor calculates the SMI® using the “Laspeyres formula,” with a weighted arithmetic mean of a defined
number of securities issues. The formula for calculating the index value can be expressed as follows:

Index  = Free Float Market Capitalization of the indexDivisor
The “free float market capitalization of the index” is equal to the sum of the product of the last-paid price, the number of
shares, the free-float factor and, if a foreign stock is included, the current CHF exchange rate as of the time the index
value is being calculated. The index value is calculated in real time and is updated whenever a trade is made in a
component stock. Where any index component stock price is unavailable on any trading day, Six Exchange will use
the last reported price for such component stock. Only prices from the SIX Exchange’s electronic order book are used
in calculating the SMI®.
Divisor Value and Adjustments
The divisor is a technical number used to calculate the SMI® and is adjusted to reflect changes in market capitalization
due to corporate events, and is adjusted by Six Exchange to reflect corporate events, as described in the SMI® rules.
The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the SMI® in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of
the SMI® was 8,414.48.
Historical Performance of the Swiss Market Index
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This historical data on the SMI® is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the SMI® or what the value
of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the SMI® during any period set forth
above is not an indication that the level of the SMI® is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the
term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels of the SMI®.
License Agreement
SIX Swiss Exchange AG (“SIX Swiss Exchange”) and its licensors (“Licensors”) have no relationship to BNS, other than
the licensing of the SMI® and the related trademarks, in exchange for a fee, for use in connection with the notes.
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SIX Swiss Exchange and its Licensors do not:

·Sponsor, endorse, sell or promote the notes.

·Recommend that any person invest in the notes or any other securities.

·Have any responsibility or liability for or make any decisions about the timing, amount or pricing of the notes.

·Have any responsibility or liability for the administration, management or marketing of the notes.

·Consider the needs of the notes or the owners of the notes in determining, composing or calculating the SMI
® or have

any obligation to do so.
SIX Swiss Exchange and its Licensors give no warranty, and exclude any liability (whether in negligence or
otherwise), in connection with the notes or their performance.
SIX Swiss Exchange does not assume any contractual relationship with the purchasers of the notes or any other third
parties.
Specifically,

·SIX Swiss Exchange and its Licensors do not give any warranty, express or implied, and exclude any liability for:

o
The results to be obtained by the notes; the owner of the notes or any other person in connection with the use of the
SMI® and the data included in the SMI®.

oThe accuracy, timeliness, and completeness of the SMI
® and its data.

oThe merchantability and the fitness for a particular purpose or use of the SMI
® and its data.

oThe performance of the notes generally.

·
SIX Swiss Exchange and its Licensors give no warranty, and exclude any liability, for any errors, omissions or
interruptions in the SMI® or its data.

·

Under no circumstances will SIX Swiss Exchange or its Licensors be liable (whether in negligence or otherwise) for
any lost profits or indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages or losses arising as a result of such errors,
omissions or interruptions in the SMI® or its data or generally in relation to the notes, even in circumstances where
SIX Swiss Exchange or its Licensors are aware that such loss or damage may occur.
The licensing agreement between BNS and SIX Swiss Exchange is solely for their benefit and not for the benefit of
the owners of the notes or any other third parties.
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The S&P/ASX 200 Index
 The S&P/ASX 200 Index (Bloomberg ticker “AS51”):

●
was first launched in 1979 by the Australian Securities Exchange and was acquired and re-launched by its current
Index sponsor on April 3, 2000; and

●is sponsored, calculated, published and disseminated by S&P.
The AS51 includes 200 companies and covers approximately 80% of the Australian equity market by market
capitalization. As discussed below, the AS51 is not limited solely to companies having their primary operations or
headquarters in Australia or to companies having their primary listing on the Australian Securities Exchange (the
“ASX”). All ordinary and preferred shares (if such preferred shares are not of a fixed income nature) listed on the ASX,
including secondary listings, are eligible for the AS51. Hybrid stocks, bonds, warrants, preferred stock that provides a
guaranteed fixed return and listed investment companies are not eligible for inclusion.
The AS51 is intended to provide exposure to the largest 200 eligible securities that are listed on the ASX by
float-adjusted market capitalization.  Constituent companies for the AS51 are chosen based on market capitalization,
public float and liquidity. All index-eligible securities that have their primary or secondary listing on the ASX are
included in the initial selection of stocks from which the 200 index stocks may be selected.
The float-adjusted market capitalization of companies is determined based on the daily average market capitalization
over the last six months. The security’s price history over the last six months, the latest available shares on issue and
the investable weight factor (the “IWF”), are the factors relevant to the calculation of daily average market
capitalization. The IWF is a variable that is primarily used to determine the available float of a security for ASX listed
securities.
Number of Shares
When considering the index eligibility of securities for inclusion or promotion into S&P/ASX indices, the number of
index securities under consideration is based upon the latest available ASX quoted securities. For domestic securities
(companies incorporated in Australia and traded on the ASX, companies incorporated overseas but exclusively listed
on the ASX and companies incorporated overseas and traded on other markets but most of its trading activity is on the
ASX), this figure is purely based upon the latest available data from the ASX.
Foreign-domiciled securities may quote the total number of securities on the ASX that is representative of their global
equity capital; whereas other foreign-domiciled securities may quote securities on the ASX on a partial basis that
represents their Australian equity capital. In order to overcome this inconsistency, S&P will quote the number of index
securities that are represented by CHESS Depositary Interests (“CDIs”) for a foreign entity. When CDIs are not issued,
S&P will use the total securities held on the Australian register (CHESS and, where supplied, the issuer sponsored
register). This quoted number for a foreign entity is representative of the Australian equity capital, thereby allowing
the AS51 to be increasingly reflective of the Australian market.
The number of CDIs or shares of a foreign entity quoted on the ASX can experience more volatility than is typically
the case for ordinary shares on issue. Therefore, an average number on issue will be applied over a six-month period.
Where CDI information is not supplied to the ASX by the company or the company’s share register, estimates for
Australian equity capital will be drawn from CHESS data and, ultimately, registry-sourced data.
IWF
The IWF represents the float-adjusted portion of a stock’s equity capital. Therefore any strategic holdings that are
classified as either corporate, private or government holdings reduce the IWF which, in turn, results in a reduction in
the float-adjusted market capital.
The IWF ranges between 0 and 1, is calculated as 1 – Sum of the % held by strategic shareholders who possess 5% or
more of issued shares, and is an adjustment factor that accounts for the publicly available shares of a company. A
company must have a minimum IWF of 0.3 to be eligible for index inclusion.
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S&P Dow Jones Indices identifies the following shareholders whose holdings are considered to be control blocks and
are subject to float adjustment:

1.Government and government agencies;

2.Controlling and strategic shareholders/partners;

3.
Any other entities or individuals which hold more than 5%, excluding insurance companies, securities companies
and investment funds; and

4.Other restricted portions such as treasury stocks.
Liquidity Test
Only stocks that are regularly traded are eligible for inclusion. Eligible stocks are considered for index inclusion based
on their stock median liquidity (median daily value traded divided by its average float-adjusted market capitalization
for the last six months relative to the market capitalization weighted average of the stock median liquidities of the 500
constituents of the All Ordinaries index, another member of the S&P/ASX index family).
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Index Maintenance
S&P rebalances constituents quarterly to ensure adequate market capitalization and liquidity using the previous six
months’ data to determine index eligibility. Quarterly review changes take effect the third Friday of March, June,
September and December. Eligible stocks are considered for index inclusion based on their float-adjusted market
capitalization rank relative to the stated quota of 200 securities. For example, a stock that is currently in the S&P/ASX
300 and is ranked at 175, based on float-adjusted market capitalization, within the universe of eligible securities may
be considered for inclusion into the AS51, provided that liquidity hurdles are met.
In order to limit the level of index turnover, eligible securities will only be considered for index inclusion once
another stock is excluded due to a sufficiently low rank and/or liquidity, based on the float-adjusted market
capitalization. Potential index inclusions and exclusions need to satisfy buffer requirements in terms of the rank of the
stock relative to a given index. The buffers are established to limit the level of index turnover that may take place at
each quarterly rebalancing.
Between rebalancing dates, an index addition is generally made only if a vacancy is created by an index deletion.
Index additions are made according to float-adjusted market capitalization and liquidity. An initial public offering is
added to the AS51 only when an appropriate vacancy occurs and is subject to proven liquidity for at least two months.
An exception may be made for extraordinary large offerings where sizeable trading volumes justify index inclusion.
Deletions can occur between index rebalancing dates due to acquisitions, mergers and spin-offs or due to suspension
or bankruptcies. The decision to remove a stock from the AS51 will be made once there is sufficient evidence that the
transaction will be completed. Stocks that are removed due to mergers and acquisitions are removed from the AS51 at
the cash offer price for cash-only offers. Otherwise, the best available price in the market is used.
Share numbers for all index constituents are updated quarterly and are rounded to the nearest thousand. The update to
the number of issued shares will be considered if the change is at least 5% of the float adjusted shares or $100 million
in value.
Share updates for foreign-domiciled securities will take place annually at the March rebalancing. The update to the
number of index shares will only take place when the six-month average of CDIs or the Total Securities held in the
Australian branch of issuer sponsored register (where supplied) and in CHESS, as of the March rebalancing, differs
from the current index shares by either 5% or a market-cap dollar amount greater than A$ 100 million. Where CDI
information is not supplied to the ASX by the company or the company’s share register, estimates for Australian equity
capital will be drawn from CHESS data and, ultimately, registry-sourced data.
Intra-quarter share changes are implemented at the effective date or as soon as reliable information is available;
however, they will only take place in the following circumstances:

●changes in a company’s float-adjusted shares of 5% or more due to market-wide shares issuance;

●rights issues, bonus issues and other major corporate actions; and

●share issues resulting from index companies merging and major off-market buy-backs.
Share changes due to mergers or acquisitions are implemented when the transaction occurs, even if both of the
companies are not in the same index and regardless of the size of the change.
IWFs are reviewed annually as part of the September quarterly review. However, any event that alters the float of a
security in excess of 5% will be implemented as soon as practicable by an adjustment to the IWF.
The function of the IWF is also to manage the index weight of foreign-domiciled securities that quote shares on the
basis of CDIs. Due to the volatility that is displayed by CDIs, unusually large changes in the number of CDIs on issue
could result. Where this is the case, the IWF may be used to limit the effect of unusually large changes in the average
number of CDIs (and, thereby, limit the potential to manipulate this figure). Where the Australian Index Committee
sees fit to apply the IWF in this manner, the rationale for the decision will be announced to the market. This will be
reviewed annually at the March-quarter index rebalancing date.
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Index Calculation
The AS51 is calculated using a base-weighted aggregate methodology. The value of the AS51 on any day for which
an index value is published is determined by a fraction, the numerator of which is the aggregate of the price of each
stock in the AS51 times the number of shares of such stock included in the AS51 times that stock’s IWF, and the
denominator of which is the divisor, which is described more fully below.
In order to prevent the value of the AS51 from changing due to corporate actions, all corporate actions may require
S&P to make an index or divisor adjustment, as described in S&P’s rules. This helps maintain the value of the AS51
and ensures that the movement of the AS51 does not reflect the corporate actions of the individual companies that
comprise the AS51.
In situations where an exchange is forced to close early due to unforeseen events, such as computer or electric power
failures, weather conditions or other events, S&P will calculate the closing price of the indices based on (1) the
closing prices published by the exchange or (2) if no closing price is available, the last regular trade reported for each
security before the exchange closed. If the exchange fails to open due to unforeseen circumstances, S&P treats this
closure as a standard market holiday. The AS51 will use the prior day’s closing prices and shifts any corporate actions
to the following business day. If all exchanges fail to open or in other extreme circumstances, S&P may determine not
to publish the AS51 for that day.
S&P reserves the right to recalculate the AS51 under certain limited circumstances.
The following graph shows the daily historical performance of the AS51 in the period from January 1, 2008 through
December 20, 2018. We obtained this historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the
accuracy or
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-25
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completeness of the information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. On the pricing date, the closing level of the AS51
Index was 5,505.822.
Historical Performance of the S&P/ASX 200 Index

This historical data on the AS51 is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the AS51 or what the value
of the notes may be. Any historical upward or downward trend in the level of the AS51 during any period set forth
above is not an indication that the level of the AS51 is more or less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the
term of the notes.
Before investing in the notes, you should consult publicly available sources for the levels of the AS51.
License Agreement
The AS51 is a product of S&P or its affiliates (“SPDJI”) and the Australian Securities Exchange, and has been licensed
for use by us in exchange for a fee.  Standard & Poor’s® and S&P® are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC (“S&P Financial”); Dow Jones® is a registered trademark of Dow Jones Trademark Holdings
LLC (“Dow Jones”); and ASX® is a registered trademark of the Australian Securities Exchange. The trademarks have
been licensed to SPDJI and have been sublicensed for certain purposes by us.  The notes are not sponsored, endorsed,
sold or promoted by SPDJI, Dow Jones, S&P Financial, any of their respective affiliates (collectively, “S&P Dow
Jones Indices”) or the Australian Securities Exchange.  Neither S&P Dow Jones Indices nor the Australian Securities
Exchange make any representation or warranty, express or implied, to the owners of the notes or any member of the
public regarding the advisability of investing in securities generally or in the notes particularly or the ability of the
AS51 to track general market performance.  S&P Dow Jones Indices’ and the Australian Securities Exchange’s only
relationship to us with respect to the AS51 is the licensing of the AS51 and certain trademarks, service marks and/or
trade names of S&P Dow Jones Indices and/or its licensors.  The AS51 is determined, composed and calculated by
S&P Dow Jones Indices or the Australian Securities Exchange without regard to us or the notes.  S&P Dow Jones
Indices and the Australian Securities Exchange have no obligation to take our needs or the owners of notes into
consideration in determining, composing or calculating the AS51.  S&P Dow Jones Indices and the Australian
Securities Exchange are not responsible for and have not participated in the determination of the prices, and amount of
the notes or the timing of the issuance or sale of the notes or in the determination or calculation of the equation by
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which the notes are to be converted into cash, surrendered or redeemed, as the case may be.  S&P Dow Jones Indices
and the Australian Securities Exchange have no obligation or liability in connection with the administration,
marketing or trading of the notes. There is no assurance that investment products based on the AS51 will accurately
track index performance or provide positive investment returns. SPDJI is not an investment advisor.  Inclusion of a
security within an index is not a recommendation by S&P Dow Jones Indices to buy, sell, or hold such security, nor is
it considered to be investment advice.
NEITHER S&P DOW JONES INDICES NOR THIRD PARTY LICENSORS GUARANTEE THE ADEQUACY,
ACCURACY, TIMELINESS AND/OR THE COMPLETENESS OF THE AS51 OR ANY DATA RELATED
THERETO OR ANY COMMUNICATION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ORAL OR WRITTEN
COMMUNICATION (INCLUDING ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS) WITH RESPECT THERETO.  S&P
DOW JONES INDICES AND THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO
ANY DAMAGES OR LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DELAYS THEREIN.  S&P DOW
JONES INDICES AND THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE MAKE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE OR AS TO RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY US, OWNERS OF THE
NOTES, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY FROM THE USE OF THE AS51 OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY
DATA RELATED THERETO.  WITHOUT LIMITING ANY OF THE FOREGOING, IN NO EVENT
WHATSOEVER SHALL S&P DOW JONES INDICES OR THE AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE BE
LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF
Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-26
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PROFITS, TRADING LOSSES, LOST TIME OR GOODWILL, EVEN IF THEY HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR
OTHERWISE.  THERE ARE NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES OF ANY AGREEMENTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN S&P DOW JONES INDICES AND US, OTHER THAN THE LICENSORS OF
S&P DOW JONES INDICES.

Market-Linked Step Up Notes TS-27
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Market-Linked Step Up Notes
Linked to an International Equity Index Basket, due December 21, 2023

The Hang Seng® Index
The HSI is calculated, maintained and published by HSIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank, in concert
with the HSI Advisory Committee and was first developed, calculated and published on November 24, 1969. The HSI
is a free float-adjusted market capitalization weighted stock market index that is designed to reflect the performance of
the Hong Kong stock market.
Only companies with a primary listing on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“SEHK”) are eligible
as constituents of the HSI. Mainland China enterprises that have an H-share listing in Hong Kong will not be eligible
for inclusion in the HSI unless the company has no unlisted share capital. In addition, to be eligible for selection, a
company: (1) must be among those that constitute the top 90% of the total market value of all primary listed shares on
the SEHK (the market value of a company refers to the average of its month-end market capitalizations for the past
12 months); (2) must be among those that constitute the top 90% of the total turnover of all primary listed shares on
the SEHK in a sufficient number of measurement sub-periods (turnover is assessed over the last eight quarterly
sub-periods: if a company was in the top 90% in any of the most recent four sub-periods, it receives two points; if it
was in the top 90% in any of the latter four sub-periods, it receives one point. A company must attain a “score” of eight
points to meet the turnover requirement); and (3) should normally have a listing history of 24 months (there are
exceptions for companies that have shorter listing histories but large market values and/or high turnover scores). From
the many eligible candidates, final selections are based on the following: (1) the market value and turnover rankings of
the companies; (2) the representation of the sub‑sectors within the HSI directly reflecting that of the market; and (3) the
financial performance of the companies.
Calculation of the HSI
The calculation methodology of the HSI is a free float-adjusted market capitalization weighting with a 10% cap on
individual stocks. Under this calculation methodology, shares held by any entities (excluding custodians, trustees,
mutual funds and investment companies) which control more than 5% of shares are excluded for index calculation:

●
Strategic holdings (governments and affiliated entities or any other entities which hold substantial shares in the
company would be considered as non-freefloat unless otherwise proved);

●
Directors’ and management holdings (directors, members of the board committee, principal officers or founding
members);

●Corporate cross holdings (publicly traded companies or private firms / institutions); and

●Lock-up shares (shareholdings with a publicly disclosed lock-up arrangement).
A free float-adjusted factor representing the proportion of shares that is free floated as a percentage of the issued
shares, is rounded up to the nearest multiple of 5% for the calculation of the HSI and is updated quarterly.
A cap of 10% on individual stock weightings is applied. A cap factor is calculated quarterly to coincide with the
regular update of the free float-adjusted factor. Additional re-capping is performed upon constituent changes.
The formula for the index calculation is as follows:
Current Index =

where:
 tom">  None None None

(1) Covenant runs from the date the executive�s employment agreement is terminated.
(2)
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Mr. Cole�s employment agreement with us provides that during the term and a period of (i) two years thereafter,
Mr. Cole cannot solicit our employees, (ii) one year thereafter, Mr. Cole cannot solicit our customers and (iii) one
year thereafter, Mr. Cole may not interfere in any manner with our relationship with our vendors.

(3) Mr. Tarshis ceased to be an executive officer in July 2013.
(4) Mr. Clamen ceased to be an executive officer in March 2014.
(5) Covenant runs from the date of executive�s employment agreement.
Termination Payments (without a change in control)

The table below includes a description and the amount of estimated payments and benefits that would be provided by
us (or our successor) to each of the named executive officers under each employment agreement, assuming that a
termination circumstance occurred as of December 31, 2013 and a �change in control� had not occurred:

Estimated Amount of Termination Payment to:
Type of Payment Termination Event Neil Cole(1)Warren Clamen(1)Andrew Tarshis(1)Jason Schaefer(1)David Blumberg(1)
Payment of earned
but unpaid salary,
unreimbursed
expense,
and accrued but
unused vacation
time(2)

Termination for Cause or
by executive without
Good Reason none none none none none

Earned but unpaid
bonuses(2)

Termination without
Cause or by executive for
Good Reason, death or
disability none none none none none

Lump Sum
Severance
Payment

Termination without
Cause or by executive for
Good Reason $ 3,000,000(3) $ �  $ �  $ 1,200,000(4) $ 1,145,333(4)

Pro rata portion of
current year
bonuses

Death, Disability
termination without
Cause, or termination by
executive for Good
Reason $ 2,175,000(6) none(5) none(5) none(5) none(6)

Continued
coverage under
medical, dental,
hospitalization and
life insurance
plans

Disability, termination
without Cause, or
termination by executive
for Good Reason $ 67,843 $ 45,455 $ �  $ 67,471 $ 67,795
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(1) See employment agreement descriptions beginning on page 17 for information regarding acceleration of vesting
and forfeiture of PSUs and RSUs.

(2) At December 31, 2013, each named executive officer is assumed to have received all such payments.
(3) Payable one half in monthly installments, and half on December 31, 2014.
(4) These amounts are payable in lump sum within 30 days of termination. Assumes that all earned bonuses have

been paid.
(5) All such bonuses are discretionary.
(6) All such bonuses are performance based.
Payments Upon Termination Following a Change of Control

In lieu of the lump sum severance payment upon termination without a change of control, Mr. Cole is entitled upon
termination following a change in control to a lump sum payment equal to three times his base salary as then in effect
plus any annual bonus earned but unpaid for a prior fiscal year and, if such termination occurs following the
Company�s first fiscal quarter, a pro-rata portion of the annual bonus Mr. Cole would have earned for the fiscal year in
which the termination occurs based on actual results for such year. Such payment is due within 60 days of the date of
such termination. Mr. Cole would also be eligible in such circumstances for the continuation of certain medical
benefits.

In addition to the payments made upon termination by the Company without cause or termination by the executive for
good reason, the employment agreements with Messrs. Tarshis and Clamen provided, and the employment agreement
with Mr. Schaefer provides that, if, within twelve months of a �change in control,� their employment is terminated by us
without �cause� or they terminate their employment with us for �good reason,� as all such terms are defined in each
employment agreement, we are obligated to make a lump-sum severance payment to each such named executive
officer equal to $100 less than three times the named executive officer�s �annualized includable compensation for the
base period� (as defined in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code). Under the same circumstances, the
employment agreement with Mr. Blumberg obligates us to make a lump-sum severance payment to Mr. Blumberg
equal to $100 less than three times the greater of (i) $400,000 or (ii) the average of the annual cash compensation
received by Mr. Blumberg on or after the effective date of his employment agreement in his capacity as an employee
of the Company during the �base period� (also as defined in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code).

Under the circumstances described in the preceding paragraph, all of the named executive officers would be entitled to
an accelerated vesting and payment of stock options and restricted stock awards granted to that named executive
officer. However, the sum of any lump sum payments, the value of any accelerated vesting of stock options and
restricted stock awards, and the value of any other benefits payable to the named executive officer, with the exception
of Mr. Cole, may not equal or exceed an amount that would constitute an �excess parachute payment� (as defined in
Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code). In respect of these named executive officers (again excluding Mr. Cole),
such payment is due within 15 days of the date of such termination.

The following table quantifies the estimated maximum amount of payments and benefits under our employment
agreements and agreements relating to awards granted under our equity incentive and stock option plans to which the
named executive officers would have been entitled upon termination of employment if we had terminated their
employment without cause within twelve (12) months following a �change in control� of our Company that (by
assumption) occurred on December 31, 2013 and prior to the expiration of any employment agreements.

Name Cash Severance
Payment

Continuation of
Medical/

Present
Value of

Present Value of
Accelerated

Total
Termination
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($) Welfare
Benefits
(Present
Value)
($)

Accelerated
Vesting of

Equity Awards ($)(1)

Payment of
Bonus ($)

Benefits ($)

Neil Cole 4,500,000(2) 53,628 29,026,692(5) 32,625(6) 33,612,945
Warren Clamen(9) 916,398(3) 45,455 2,087,847 0 3,049,700
Andrew Tarshis 0 0 0 0 0
Jason Schaefer 1,040,139(3) 67,471 0(7) 0 1,107,610
David Blumberg 1,145,547(3) 67,795 2,150,626(8) 0 3,363,968

(1) This amount represents: (a) with respect to all PSUs, or RSUs granted during the 2013 calendar year, the
unrealized value of the unvested portion of the respective named executive officer�s PSUs and/or such RSUs
based upon the closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2013, and (b) with respect to all other RSUs,
the present value of the accelerated vesting of such RSUs. Additionally, (a) with respect to Neil Cole, this amount
also represents the unrealized value of 28,888 PSUs that were forfeited on December 31, 2013, and (b) with
respect to Warren Clamen, this amount also represents the unrealized value of 1,289 PSUs that
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were forfeited on December 31, 2013. While the PSUs described in the preceding sentence were forfeited on
December 31, 2013, this analysis presumes that such PSUs would have become vested upon a change of control
on December 31, 2013. See the descriptions of the employment agreements beginning on page 16 regarding
accelerated vesting of and forfeiture of PSUs and RSUs. For 280G purposes, we have assumed that the
accelerated vesting of RSUs on a change in control is a �change in control payment.�

(2) Payable within 60 days of termination.
(3) Payable within 15 days of termination.
(4) Payable within 30 days of termination.
(5) Assumes no �catch-up� vesting of PSUs.
(6) Represents 2013 bonus payable plus the present value of the accelerated payment date of such bonus due to a

change in control.
(7) Does not include $236,175 of equity awards that vested on December 31, 2013 without regard to a change in

control.
(8) Does not include $2,426,093 of equity awards that vested on December 31, 2013 without regard to a change in

control.
(9) This chart illustrates a hypothetical change of control at December 31, 2013. Mr. Clamen was still an employee

of the Company at December 31, 2013; he ceased to be an executive officer of the Company in March 2014. As
of the date hereof, we have no further obligations to Mr. Clamen.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The compensation committee determined that for each full year of service as a director of our company during 2013,
each non-employee member of the Board would receive a cash payment of $70,000, payable 50% on or about each
January 1 and 50% on or about each July 1, and a number of restricted shares of common stock with a fair market
value of $100,000 on January 1, vesting 100% on July 1 of each year. In addition, the compensation committee
determined that the audit committee chair would receive an annual stipend of $25,000, and the chairs of the
compensation committee and nominating and governance committee would receive an annual stipend of $20,000 and
$20,000, respectively, each payable each July 1.

The following table sets forth compensation information for 2013 for each person who served as a member of our
Board of Directors at any time during 2013 who is not also an executive officer. An executive officer who serves on
our Board does not receive additional compensation for serving on the Board. See Summary Compensation Table and
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table for disclosures related to our Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Neil Cole.

Name

Fees
Earned
or Paid
in Cash
($)

Stock
Awards
($)(1)

Option
Awards
($)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)

Change in
Pension Value

and Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings

All Other
Compensation

($)
Total
($)

Barry Emanuel $ 70,000 $ 100,000 �  �  �  �  $ 170,000
Drew Cohen 90,000 100,000 �  �  �  �  190,000
F. Peter Cuneo 95,000 100,000 �  �  �  �  195,000
Mark Friedman 90,000 100,000 �  �  �  �  190,000
James A. Marcum 70,000 100,000 �  �  �  �  170,000
Laurence N. Charney(2) 43,940 100,000 �  �  �  �  143,940

(1) Represents the aggregate grant date fair value. See Note 6 to Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion for the relevant assumptions used in calculating
grant date fair value. At December 31, 2013 our non-employee directors owned the following unexercised
options�Drew Cohen�20,000; Barry Emanuel�50,000.

(2) Mr. Charney resigned from our board of directors effective August 16, 2013, as previously reported on the
Company�s Form 8-K filed on August 16, 2013.

Director Compensation for 2014. Following its annual review of director compensation, the Compensation Committee
determined that the director compensation for 2014 shall be $80,000 in cash payable one half on January 1st and one
half on July 1st and a number of shares of restricted stock with an aggregate value of $100,000 based on the closing
price of the first trading day of each new year, with such shares vesting in full on July 1st of the year of grant.
Additionally, each Chairperson of the Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees shall received additional
cash payments of $25,000, $20,000 and $15,000, respectively.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
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The following table presents information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as April 21, 2014 by
each of our directors and our named executive officers, all of our executive officers and directors, as a group, and each
person known by us to beneficially hold more than five percent of our common stock, based on information obtained
from such persons.

Unless indicated below, to our knowledge, the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and sole
investment power with respect to all securities beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where
applicable. The shares �beneficially owned� by a person are determined in accordance with the definition of �beneficial
ownership� set forth in the regulations of the SEC and, accordingly, shares of our common stock underlying options,
warrants, restricted stock units and other convertible securities that are exercisable or convertible within 60 days of
April 21, 2014 and shares of our common stock underlying restricted stock awards that vest within 60 days of
April 21, 2014 are deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such securities and to be outstanding for
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purposes of determining such holder�s percentage ownership. The same securities may be beneficially owned by more
than one person. Percentage ownership is based on 48,690,460 shares of our common stock outstanding as of April
21, 2014. The address for each beneficial owner, unless otherwise noted, is c/o Iconix Brand Group, Inc. at 1450
Broadway, New York, New York 10018.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Number of
Shares of
Common
Stock

Beneficially
Owned

Percentage
of

Company�s
Outstanding
Common

Stock Beneficially
Owned

Neil Cole 2,955,167(1) 5.9% 
Jeff Lupinacci 0 * 
Seth Horowitz 27,025 * 
David Blumberg 296,157(2) * 
Jason Schaefer 3,786 * 
Barry Emanuel 76,649(3) * 
Drew Cohen 32,103 * 
F. Peter Cuneo 137,879 * 
Mark Friedman 42,467 * 
James A. Marcum 44,423 * 
BlackRock, Inc.

40 East 42nd Street

New York, NY 10022 4,626,978(4) 9.5% 

The Vanguard Group

100 Vanguard Boulevard

Malvern, PA 19355 3,066,706(5) 6.3% 

Michael W. Cook Asset Management

d/b/a SouthernSun

6070 Poplar Avenue, Suite 300

Memphis, TN 38119 4,232,737(6) 8.7% 

Sarbit Advisory Services

One Evergreen Place

Winnepeg, Manitoba R3LOE9 3,939,063(7) 8.1% 
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Dimensional Fund Advisors LP

Palisades West, Building One

6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin, Texas 78746 5,434,162(8) 11.2% 

All directors and executive officers as a group (10
persons) 3,615,656(9) 7.2% 

* Less than 1%
(1) Includes (i) 1,000,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options, (ii) 1,181,614 shares of

common stock underlying 2008 RSUs that have vested but the delivery of which Mr. Cole has agreed to defer
and (iii) 20,000 shares of common stock owned by Mr. Cole�s children. Does not include (i) shares held in
Mr. Cole�s account under the Company�s 401(k) savings plan, (ii) 136,612 shares of common stock underlying
2011 RSUs that have not yet vested and (iii) 772,220 2011 PSUs that have not yet vested.

(2) Includes (i) 75,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options owned by Mr. Blumberg and
(ii) 105,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options owned by Blumberg Associates, LLC.
82,000 shares are held in a margin account as collateral.

(3) Includes 40,000 shares of common stock issuance upon exercise of options owned by Mr. Emanuel.
(4) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed on January 29, 2014, BlackRock, Inc. is deemed to have beneficial ownership

of these shares. Various persons have the right to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or
the proceeds from the sale of, such shares. The BlackRock, Inc., subsidiaries which acquired these shares are
BlackRock Japan Co. Ltd.; BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A.; BlackRock Fund Advisors; BlackRock
Asset Management Canada Limited; BlackRock Asset Management Australia Limited; BlackRock Advisors,
LLC; BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited; BlackRock International Limited; BlackRock Investment
Management, LLC; BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited and BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited.
BlackRock, Inc. has sole voting and dispositive power in respect of these shares.
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(5) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 11, 2014, The Vanguard Group, Inc. (the �Vanguard Group�) is
deemed to have beneficial ownership of these shares, of which (i) 72,942 shares are owned beneficially by
Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Vanguard Group, as a result of its serving
as investment manager of collective trust accounts and (ii) 4,400 shares are owned beneficially by Vanguard
Investments Australia, Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of The Vanguard Group, Inc., as a result of its serving as
an investment manager of Australian investment offerings.

(6) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 14, 2014, Michael W. Cook Asset Management d/b/a SouthernSun is
deemed to have beneficial ownership of these shares.

(7) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 13, 2014, Sarbit Advisory Services is deemed to have beneficial
ownership of these shares.

(8) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 10, 2014, Dimensional Fund Advisors LP is deemed to have
beneficial ownership of these shares. Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, an investment adviser registered under
Section 203 of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, furnishes investment advice to four investment companies
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and serves as investment manager to certain other
commingled group trusts and separate accounts (such investment companies, trusts and accounts, collectively
referred to as the �Funds�). In certain cases, subsidiaries of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP may act as an adviser or
sub-adviser to certain Funds. In its role as investment advisor, sub-adviser and/or manager, Dimensional Fund
Advisors LP or its subsidiaries (collectively, �Dimensional�) possess voting and/or investment power over the
securities of the Issuer that are owned by the Funds, and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of the shares
of the Issuer held by the Funds. However, all securities reported in this schedule are owned by the Funds.
Dimensional disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities.

(9) Includes 1,220,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to all of the Company�s equity compensation plans in
effect as of December 31, 2013.

Plan Category

Number of
securities to

be
issued upon exercise

of outstanding
options, warrants

and rights
(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price

of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(b)

Number of securities
remaining available for

future issuance under equity
compensation 

plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column

(a))
(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders: 1,243,077 $ 7.63 2,584,184
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders(1): 260,000 $ 9.39 �  

Total 1,503,077 $ 7.94 2,584,184

(1)
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Represents the aggregate number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of 260,000 options issued
under the terms of our 2001 Stock Option Plan. These options expire at various dates through December 28,
2015, contain anti-dilution provisions providing for adjustments of the exercise price under certain circumstances
and have termination provisions similar to options granted under stockholder approved plans. See Note 6 of
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of
our stock option and stock incentive plans.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Pursuant to its charter, our audit committee must review and approve, where appropriate, all related party transactions.

The Candie�s Foundation

The Candie�s Foundation, a charitable foundation founded by Neil Cole, our chairman, chief executive officer and
president, for the purpose of raising national awareness about the consequences of teenage pregnancy, owed us $0.1
million and $0.6 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The Candie�s Foundation intends
to pay off the entire borrowing from us during 2014, although additional advances will be made as and when
necessary.

Travel

We recorded expenses of approximately $90,000, $155,000 and $114,000 for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, for the hire and use of aircraft solely for business purposes owned by a company in which Neil Cole, our
chairman, chief executive officer and president, is the sole owner. We believe that all transactions were made on terms
and conditions no less favorable than those available in the marketplace from unrelated parties.

Board Independence

Our Board has determined that Messrs. Cohen, Cuneo, Emanuel, Friedman and Marcum are each an �independent
director� under the applicable Listing Rules of NASDAQ.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed by BDO USA, LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of the
Company�s annual financial statements for 2013 and 2012, internal controls over financial reporting and the reviews of
the financial statements included in the Company�s Forms 10-Q, comfort letters and consents related to SEC
registration statements and other capital raising activities for 2013 and 2012 totaled approximately $866,400 and
$826,500, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees. There were approximately $10,000 and $90,000 aggregate fees billed by BDO USA, LLP for
assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company�s
financial statements for 2013 and 2012, respectively, and that are not disclosed in the paragraph captioned �Audit Fees�
above. The majority of the audit-related fees in 2012 were related to acquisitions.

Tax Fees. The aggregate fees billed by BDO USA, LLP for professional services rendered for tax compliance and
consulting for 2013 and 2012, were approximately $244,100 and $55,000, respectively. There were no fees billed by
BDO USA, LLP for professional services rendered for tax advice and tax planning for 2013 and 2012.

All Other Fees. There were no fees billed by BDO USA, LLP, for products and services other than the services
described in the paragraphs captioned �Audit Fees�, �Audit-Related Fees�, and �Tax Fees� above for 2013 and 2012.

The Audit Committee has established its pre-approval policies and procedures, pursuant to which the Audit
Committee approved the foregoing audit services provided by BDO USA, LLP in 2013. Consistent with the Audit
Committee�s responsibility for engaging the Company�s independent auditors, all audit and permitted non-audit
services require pre-approval by the Audit Committee. The full Audit Committee approves proposed services and fee
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estimates for these services. The Audit Committee chairperson or their designee has been designated by the Audit
Committee to approve any services arising during the year that were not pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
Services approved by the Audit Committee chairperson are communicated to the full Audit Committee at its next
regular meeting and the Audit Committee reviews services and fees for the fiscal year at each such meeting. Pursuant
to these procedures, the Audit Committee approved all the foregoing audit services and permissible non-audit services
provided by BDO USA, LLP.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents included as part of this Annual Report

1. The following consolidated financial statements are included in this Annual Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets�December 31, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Income Statements for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The following consolidated financial statement schedule of Iconix Brand Group, Inc. and subsidiaries is included in
Item 15(d):

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II Valuation and qualifying accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been
omitted.

3. See the Index to Exhibits for a list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report.

(b) See Item (a) 3 above.

(c) See Item (a) 2 above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ICONIX BRAND GROUP, INC.

Date: April 30, 2014 By: /s/ Neil Cole
Neil Cole
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Jeff Lupinacci
Jeff Lupinacci
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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Index to Exhibits

Exhibit
Numbers Description

2.1 Contribution and Sale Agreement dated October 26, 2009 by and among the Company, IP Holder LLC,
now known as IP Holdings Unltd LLC, Seth Gerszberg, Suchman LLC, Yakira, L.L.C., Ecko.Complex,
LLC, Zoo York LLC and Zoo York THC LLC+(1)

2.2 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of March 9, 2010 by and between the Company and
Purim LLC(2)+

2.3 Purchase Agreement dated as of April 26, 2010 by and among the Company, United Features
Syndicate, Inc. and The E.W. Scripps Company(3)+

2.4 Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 26, 2011 by and among Hardy Way LLC, Nervous Tattoo, Inc.
and Audigier Brand Management Group, LLC(4)+

2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 26, 2011 by and between the Company and Sharper Image
Acquisition LLC(5)+

2.6 Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 24, 2012 by and among Iconix Brand Group, Inc., Umbro IP
Holdings LLC, Iconix Luxembourg Holdings SÀRL, Umbro International Limited, Nike Global
Services Pte. Ltd. and NIKE, Inc(6)+

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended(9)

3.2 Restated and Amended By-Laws(10)

4.1 Indenture, dated May 23, 2011, between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust,
N.A.(11)

4.2 Global Note(11)

4.3 Base Indenture dated November 29, 2012(12)

4.4 Supplemental Indenture dated November 29, 2012(12)

4.5 Supplemental Indenture Series 2013-1 Supplement dated as of June 21, 2013(8)

4.6 Indenture 1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2018 dated as of March 18, 2013(39)

4.7 Global Note(39)

10.2 2000 Stock Option Plan of the Company(14)*

10.3 2001 Stock Option Plan of the Company(15)*

10.4 2002 Stock Option Plan of the Company(16)*

10.5 Non-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan(17)*

10.6 401(K) Savings Plan of the Company(18)

10.7 Employment Agreement between Neil Cole and the Company dated January 28, 2008(7)*

10.8 Option Agreement of Neil Cole dated November 29, 1999(18)*
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10.9 The Company�s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of options granted thereunder(19)*

10.10 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for officers under the Company�s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(20)*

10.11 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Directors under the Company�s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan(20)*

10.12 Form of Option Agreement under the Company�s 1997 Stock Option Plan(21)*

10.13 Form of Option Agreement under the Company�s 2000 Stock Option Plan(21)*

10.14 Form of Option Agreement under the Company�s 2001 Stock Option Plan(21)*

10.15 Form of Option Agreement under the Company�s 2002 Stock Option Plan(21)*

10.16 Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to UCC Consulting Corporation(22)

10.17 Note and Security Agreement dated November 7, 2007 made by Artful Holdings, LLC in favor of the
Company(23)

10.18 Restricted Stock Grant Agreement dated February 19, 2008 between the Company and Neil Cole(24)*

10.19 Restricted Stock Performance Unit Agreement dated February 19, 2008 between the Company and Neil
Cole(24)*
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10.20 Lease dated as of November 12, 2007 with respect to the Company�s Executive Offices(24)

10.21 Iconix Brand Group, Inc. Executive Incentive Bonus Plan(25)

10.22 Agreement dated May 2008 between the Company and Neil Cole(26)*

10.23 Agreement dated December 24, 2008 between the Company and Neil Cole(27)*

10.24 Form of restricted stock agreement under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan*(28)

10.25 Form of stock option agreement under the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan*(28)

10.26 Restricted Stock Performance Unit Agreement with Neil Cole dated September 23, 2009*(28)

10.27 Restricted Stock Agreement with Warren Clamen dated September 22, 2009*(28)

10.28 Restricted Stock Agreement with Andrew Tarshis dated September 22, 2009*(28)

10.29 Employment Agreement dated February 26, 2009 between the Company and David Blumberg*(29)

10.30 Restricted Stock Agreement with David Blumberg dated September 22, 2009*(29)

10.31 Purchase Agreement, dated May 17, 2011, among Iconix Brand Group, Inc., Barclays Capital Inc. and
Goldman, Sachs & Co.(11)

10.32 Confirmation of OTC Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 17, 2011, between the Company Inc. and Barclays
Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(11)

10.33 Confirmation of OTC Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 17, 2011, between the Company and Goldman,
Sachs & Co.(11)

10.34 Confirmation of OTC Warrant Transaction, dated May 17, 2011, between the Company and Barclays Capital
Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(11)

10.35 Confirmation of OTC Warrant Transaction, dated May 17, 2011, between the Company and Goldman, Sachs
& Co.(11)

10.36 Confirmation of Additional OTC Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 18, 2011, between the Company and
Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(11)

10.37 Confirmation of Additional OTC Convertible Note Hedge, dated May 18, 2011, between the Company and
Goldman, Sachs & Co.(11)

10.38 Confirmation of Additional OTC Warrant Transaction, dated May 18, 2011, between the Company and
Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(11)

10.39 Confirmation of Additional OTC Warrant Transaction, dated May 18, 2011, between the Company and
Goldman, Sachs & Co.(11)

10.40 Amendment to Employment Agreement between Neil Cole and the Company dated June 17, 2011(30)*

10.41 Restricted Stock Agreement dated June 17, 2011 between the Company and Neil Cole(31)*

10.42 Restricted Stock Performance Unit Agreement dated June 17, 2011 between the Company and Neil Cole(31)*

10.43 Employment Agreement Amendment dated October 7, 2011 between the Company and Warren Clamen(32)*

10.44 Employment Agreement Amendment dated October 7, 2011 between the Company and Andrew Tarshis(32)*

10.45 Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of November 22, 2011 among the Company, as Borrower, and the
several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto, Barclays Capital, the
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investment banking division of Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and GE Capital Markets, Inc.,
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and GE Capital Markets, Inc., as
Syndication Agents, Barclays Bank PLC, as Documentation Agent, and Barclays Bank PLC, as
Administrative Agent(33)

10.46 Guarantee and Collateral Agreement dated as of November 22, 2011 made by the Company and certain of its
Subsidiaries in favor of Barclays Bank PLC, as Administrative Agent(33)

10.47 Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2012 between the Company and David Blumberg(34)*
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10.48 Class A-1 Note Purchase Agreement dated November 29, 2012 by and among Registrant, Co-Issuers, Certain
Conduit Investors, Certain Financial Institutions, Certain Funding Agents, Barclays Bank PLC, as L/C
Provider, Barclays Bank PLC as Swingline Lender and Barclays Bank PLC, as Administrative Agent(12)

10.49 Management Agreement dated November 29, 2012 by and among the Co-Issuers, Registrant and Citibank,
N.A., as trustee(12)

10.50 Amendment to Employment Agreement entered into February 15, 2013 to be effective February 1, 2013
between the Company and David Blumberg(35)*

10.51 PSU Agreement dated February 15, 2013 between Iconix Brand Group, Inc. and David Blumberg(35)*

10.52 Form of RSU Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2009 Plan (Executive)(36)*

10.53 Form of RSU Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2009 Plan (Non-Executive)(36)*

10.54 Form of RSU Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated 2009 Plan (Non-employee Director)(36)*

10.55 Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan(36)*

10.56 GAAP Reconciliation++

10.57 Clawback policy form of Acknowledgement(36)*

10.58 Employment Agreement dated as of August 19, 2013 between the Company and Jason Schaefer(37)*

10.59 Employment Agreement Amendment dated as of March 18, 2014 between the Company and Seth
Horowitz(38)*

10.60 Employment Agreement dated as of March 18, 2014 between the Company and Jeff Lupinacci(38)*

10.61 Purchase Agreement dated March 12, 2013 between Iconix Brand Group, Inc. and Barclays Capital Inc.(39)*

10.62 Confirmation of OTC Convertible Note Hedge dated March 13, 2013 between Iconix Brand Group, Inc. and
Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(39)*

10.63 Confirmation of Additional OTC Convertible Note Hedge dated March 13, 2013 between Iconix Brand
Group, Inc. and Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(39)*

10.64 Confirmation of OTC Warrant Transaction dated March 13, 2013 between Iconix Brand Group, Inc. and
Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(39)*

10.65 Confirmation of Additional OTC Warrant Transaction dated March 13, 2013 between Iconix Brand Group,
Inc. and Barclays Capital Inc., acting as agent for Barclays Bank PLC(39)*

21 Subsidiaries of the Company+++

23 Consent of BDO USA, LLP+++

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant To Rule 13a-14 Or 15d-14 Of The Securities Exchange Act
Of 1934, As Adopted Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002++

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant To Rule 13a-14 Or 15d-14 Of The Securities Exchange
Act Of 1934, As Adopted Pursuant To Section 302 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002++

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002+++

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted pursuant To
Section 906 Of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002+++
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(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated October 30, 2009 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated March 9, 2010 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated April 26, 2010 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(4) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated April 26, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(5) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated October 26, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 30, 2012 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(7) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated January 28, 2008 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated June 21, 2013 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007
and incorporated by reference herein.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated August 6, 2012 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated May 17, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 29, 2012 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 1997 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(14) Filed as Exhibit A to the Company�s definitive Proxy Statement dated July 18, 2000 as filed on Schedule 14A and
incorporated by reference herein.

(15) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2002 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(16) Filed as Exhibit B to the Company�s definitive proxy statement dated May 28, 2002 as filed on Schedule 14A and
incorporated by reference herein.

(17) Filed as Appendix B to the Company�s definitive Proxy Statement dated July 2, 2001 as filed on Schedule 14A
and incorporated by reference herein.

(18) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2003 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(19) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated July 31, 2008 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006
and incorporated by reference herein.

(21) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Transition Report on Form 10-K for the transition period from February 1,
2004 to December 31, 2004 and incorporated by reference herein.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(23) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 7, 2007 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(24) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2007 and
incorporated by reference herein.
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(25) Filed as Annex B to the Company�s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on April 7,
2008 and incorporated by reference herein.

(26) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2008 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(27) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated December 24, 2008 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(28) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009
and incorporated herein by reference.

(29) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and
incorporated by reference herein.
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(30) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated June 17, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(31) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 and
incorporated herein by reference.

(32) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated October 7, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(33) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated November 22, 2011 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(34) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated March 5, 2012 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(35) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated February 15, 2013 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(36) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(37) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(38) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated March 18, 2014 and
incorporated by reference herein.

(39) Filed as an exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K for the event dated March 12, 2013 and
incorporated by reference herein.

* Denotes management compensation plan or arrangement
+ Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. Iconix Brand Group,

Inc. hereby undertakes to furnish supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission copies of any of the
omitted schedules and exhibits upon request by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

** Portions of this document have been omitted and were filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, which was granted under Rule 24b-2 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

++ Filed herewith.
+++ Filed with Original Filing.
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